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Company Protile

Horizon Offshore, Inc. is a leader in providing marine construction ser-
vices for the worldwide oil and gas industry. We create powerful con-
nections: from the quality processes and equipment it takes to construct
an offshore project, to the ingenuity of implementing cost-effective
ideas, and by employing the right people to get the job done.

Our expertise in offshore construction services and dedication to sound
financial practices supplies the industry with the best choice for pipeline
installation, pipebury, hook-up and subsea tie-in operations around the
world. Horizon's vessels also perform installation and/or removal of
production platforms, and other construction projects involving marine
structures.

By accessing world markets of offshore oil and gas activity through our
growing network of business development, we are able to offer key
services to the marine construction industry in areas such as the U.S.
Gulf of Mexico, US. East Coast, Latin America, West Africa, and
Southeast Asia. Horizon's barges are strategically positioned to mobi-
lize for projects in these areas in order to meet global market demands
without delay.

Our success and leadership is balanced with the desire to continually
improve the way we conduct business. Making solid connections

between assets, experience and innovation will ensure our ability to
continue to serve the worldwide industry.




Fimamcial Highlights

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,

Income Statement Data

Contract revenues

Cost of contract revenues
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Impairment of property and equipment
Operating income (loss)

Other:
Interest expense, net of amount capitalized
Interest income
Gain (loss) on sale of assets
Other income {expense), net

Net income (loss) before income taxes, extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of accounting change

Income tax provision (benefit)

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of accounting change

Extraordinary loss, net of taxes of $(306)

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes of $743

Net income (loss)

Earnings per share - basic:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of accounting change

Extraordinary loss

Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss) —basic

Earnings per share — diluted:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of accounting change

Extraordinary loss

Cumulative effect of accounting change

Net income (loss) —diluted

Statement of Cash Flows Data

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities

Other Financial Data

Depreciation and amortization

Capital expenditures

December 31,

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Stockholders' equity

Other Non-GAAP Financial Data
EBITDA®
EBITDA calculation is as follows:
Net income (loss)
Extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change

Income tax provision (benefit)

Net interest expense

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash impairment of property and equipment
EBITDA

2002 2007 2000 1999 1998
$283,410 $272,208  $160,532  $89,015 $119,802
953,016 937,175 136,146 72,181 91,961
30,394 35,033 24,386 16,834 27,841
21,845 13,771 9,401 9,043 8,120
9,852 - - - -
(1,303) 21,262 14,985 7,791 19,721
(4,585)  (5,381)  (7,730)  (5,759)  (3,000)
91 403 718 480 187
- (22) 6 10 20
(2,831) (184) (84) 158 17
(8,628) 16,078 7,895 9,680 16,945
(3,079) 4,817 2,902 1,001 4,485
(5,549) 11,261 4,993 1,679 12,460
- (568) - - -
- - 1,381 - -
$ (5,549) § 10693 $ 6374 $ 1679 § 12460
$ (022 $ 050 $ 027 § 009 $ 0.69
- (0.02) - - -
- - 0.07 _ -
5 (0.22) $ 048 § 034 § 009 3% 060
$ 022 § 049 $ 02 § 009 § 0.69
- (0.03) - - -
- - 0.07 _ -
$ (022) § 046 § 033 § 009 § 069
$ 47,458  $(43.994) $ 8,723  $12,627 § 9,704
(58,723)  (53,223)  (18,178) (23,397)  (78,490)
9,474 95,838 10,581 9,238 75,589
$ 15959 § 12,935 § 9591 § 7574 $ 4,448
57,723 54,898 19,268 24,396 95,725
2002 2001
$ 30,385 § 78,055
957,847 221,446
420,533 393,584
90,062 111,414
211,675 185,690
$ 21,677 $ 33,991 $ 24498 $15533  $ 24,206
$ (5549 $ 10,603 $6,374  $1,679 $ 12,460
- 568 (1,381) - -
(3,079) 4,817 2,902 1,001 4,485
4,494 4,978 7,012 5,279 2,813
15,959 12,935 9,591 7,574 4,448
9,852 - - - _
$ 21,677 $ 83,091 § 94498 $15,533 $ 24,206

(1) Horizon calculates EBITDA (earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amartization) as net income or loss excluding extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change, income taxes, net interest expense, depreciation and amortization, and non-cash impairment. Earnings includes revenues for services for which non-cash
consideration is received (approximately $6.8 million in 2002). EBITDA is a supplemental financial measurement we use to evaluate our business. We believe that EBITDA
provides supplemental information about our ability to meet future requirements for debt service, capital expenditures and working capital. It is not intended to depict funds avail-
able for reinvestment or other discretionary uses. We believe factors that should be considered by investors in evaluating EBITDA include, but are not limited to, trends in EBITDA
as compared to cash flow from operations, debt service requirements and capital expenditures. Qur measurement of EBITDA may not be comparable 1o EBITDA as calculated by
other companies, Further, you should not consider EBITDA in isolation as an alternative to, or more meaningful than, net income, cash flow provided by (used in) operations or any

other measure of performance determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as an indicator of our profitability or liquidity.
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Letter to Qur Sharcecholders

~rom the Presigent

Success, to all of us at Horizon is not an
option; it’s the product of hard work and
commitment. 2002 proved to be a harsh eco-
nomic environment, one of the most difficult
markets we have seen, not just for Horizon, but
for the entire industry. Building on the solid
foundation of our first five years, and by implement-
ing our second five-year plan, we continue to focus on
strategic growth. Horizon has emerged as a contrac-
tor of choice in marine construction. Our reputation
established with years of experienced leadership
behind us, creates the right connections for pursuing
future business opportunities as they unfold.

At year end, we reorganized our management
structure to maximize the experience and capabilities
of our employees. Horizon intends to be the number
one choice of contractors in the industry from the
customer’s perspective, as well as a career choice for
potential employees. Experienced and driven
personalities traditionally make up the company’s
roster, and these characteristics are what steer the
company.

Horizon succeeded in penetrating several new areas
of operation during 2002 — the Northeastern U.S.
Bill J. Lam and West Africa. Moving into new international
President and Chief Executive Officer areas, Horizon acquired the planned for counter-sea-
sonal balance to offset the seasonally available work in
the Gulf of Mexico.

The Eastchester Extension project for Iroquois Gas
Transmission System, L.P. off of New York City’s
coastline was awarded to Horizon in April of 2002,
and work began early in the fourth quarter with the
Gulf Horizon. Regional issues made this a hallmark
project: an environmentally sensitive installation area
and sub-freezing temperatures, to name a few. Our
rise to these challenges took many hours of project
planning, but the results were successful. Winterizing
upgrades to the vessel and the design and building of
a pipebury plow, have allowed us to continue working
through one of the worst winter seasons in a decade.



We have increased activity in our West Africa headquarters in
Lagos, Nigeria. Our marine base in Port Harcourt began opera-
tions in the third quarter, just prior to the arrival of the Brazos
Horizon. Our presence in West Africa paid off in a two-year call-out con-
tract with Chevron Nigeria, Ltd.

Securing Worldwide Relationships

Our relationships with clients in the Gulf of Mexico and around the world continue to
strengthen and our resumé has continued to grow. We successfully completed several
projects in the Gulf this year utilizing many of the pipelay, pipebury and derrick services we offer to the
industry. We have used our fleet’s diverse capabilities by laying pipe in water depths as shallow as 8 feet and as
deep as 730 feet.

Horizon also continues to maintain a strong presence in Mexico. This year saw the completion of the EPC 64
project, pipeline rehabilitation work in the Cantarell field on project 003, and completed pipelay and
commissioning for the KIX project during the first quarter of 2003.

The Horizon operations in Southeast Asia experienced growth in 2002. Business development extends into
Singapore, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand, Australia and other locations in the region. The combination pipelay
and derrick barge Sea Horizon successtully performed projects for such clients as Unocal (Indonesia), Maxus (Java
Sea), Apache Energy (Western Australia), TotalFinaElf (Borneo), and CNOOC (Java Sea). Having completed
scheduled upgrades, the Sea Horizon is on the move again to perform a combination pipelay/structural
installation for Brunei Shell Petroleum.

We are acutely aware of what makes a difference in this industry. It is our workforce that separates us from the
rest of the pack. Horizon employees continue to prove their value. The finest personnel in the industry fulfilled
the company’s mission of our first five-year plan, and we are responding to the challenges of 2002 with more
confidence, more intelligence, and greater focus.

Working as a team and drawing on the best of our abilities, we have achieved our goals of global expansion. By
constant evaluation of our methods of operation and business practices and strategically placing our assets in
selective areas, and by competitive and quality job performance, we continue to achieve penetration of
sought after areas. We are now gaining the attention of oil and gas clients in world markets. We are striving
to make worldwide connections a profitable reality, and look forward to sharing our progress with you.

As a final note I would like to thank exiting Board members James Devine, Derek Leach, and Jonathan Pollack
. for their service and dedication during their tenure at Horizon.

heerry™

Bill J. Lam
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2003
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Through vears of growth and experience in the
marine construction business, Horizon’s strong focus
on projects involving pipelay, pipebury, hook-ups,
structural installations and removal has paid off with
a long list of satisfied customers. The combination of
experience and equipment to perform the job, and
an exceptional ability to approach projects with inno-
vative ideas in a cost-conscious manner, is the reason
Horizon continues to offer resourceful solutions to
our offshore oil and gas customers in the U.S., Latin
America, West Africa and Southeast Asia.
Pipelay / Pipebury

2002 saw the award and completion of several signifi-
cant projects utilizing the pipelay and pipebury skills of
Hornizon's fleet. EDC Ecuador, Ltd. awarded Horizon
the Amistad project, which involved laying and burying 42
miles of 12 inch pipeline off the coast of Ecuador.
Also in the Latin American region, jobs completed in
2002 for PEMEX included the EPC 64 pipelay and
bury in Mexico, as well as the pipeline relocation and
refurbishment project 003, and the KIX project. KIX
involved a 24 kilometer, 8 inch pipelay with additional
platform hook-up on the PR-1 Platform.

Customers in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico continue to
choose Horizon over other competitors to perform
pipelay and bury services in a wide range of water
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depths and pipe sizes. El Paso Energy Partners
awarded us the installation and tie-in of 83 miles of a
24 inch pipeline in water depths ranging from 15 to
65 feet as part of the Cameron Highway Oil Pipeline
System. Dominion Exploration and Production, Inc.
commissioned Horizon to lay 27,000 feet of 8 inch
pipe in the West Cameron 100 block, as well as addi-
tional 6 inch lines, 30 to 300 feet deep. Williams Oil
Gathering, LLC incorporated Horizon’s services as
part of the Mountaineer Shallow Water Pipeline
System to lay and bury 50 miles of a 20 inch pipeline.
The pipeline was laid in water depths ranging from as
shallow as 8 feet, up to 270 feet, from Main Pass 22 to
Main Pass 313. The pipeline was trenched to 3 feet,
with the exception of a shipping fairway crossing
where it will be trenched to 10 feet. Another impor-
tant addition to Horizon’s resumé from 2002 was
Tarpon Operating and Development, LLC’s project
in West Cameron 661 and Garden Banks 191, which
required the services of Horizon to lay 67,000 feet of
a 6 inch pipeline to a maximum 730 foot water depth.
This was a record depth pipelay for Horizon with
pipe of that size.

In a2 new market for Horizon, Iroquois Gas
Transmission System, L.F, awarded Horizon a hall-
mark project in 2002 to lay and bury a 24 inch gas
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Operational Overview

line spanning 35 miles from the shore of North Long
Island, through Long Island Sound, into the East
River, and terminating in the South Bronx of New
York City. An example of Horizon’s solution to envi-
ronmentally sensitive specifications of the project was
the design and construction of a state-of-the-art plow
for pipe burial. It is a 105 ton, 28 feet high, 70 feet
wide post pipelay plow, which was designed to trench
7 to 9 feet deep. Once again, fresh ideas coupled with
experience brought about positive results for
Horizon.

Structural Litts / Removal
and Repair

El Paso Energy Partners not only utilized the pipelay
and burial services Horizon provides, but also took
advantage of the company’s derrick capabilities in
2002 as well. Project awards and completions
included the lift and removal of four platforms in the
U.S. Gulf of Mexico’'s High Island blocks
A-271, A-313, A-330 & A-349. The platforms were
transported to onshore locations for future sale,
refurbishment, and/or re-installation in the Gulf. As
part of the platform removal program, Horizon was
also commissioned to install a tripod in High Island
block A-316.

N

B

Revenues - Domestic and International
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A Combination of Services
Horizon can offer customers the opportunity to
conduct pipelay, pipebury and structural installation
or removal activities with one project award.
Chevron Nigeria Ltd. in West Africa has identified
this cost-saving approach with Horizon and signed a
call-out contract in 2002 for two years, with an option
for an additional year.

Brunei Shell Petroleum Sdn. Bhd. has also seen
opportunities to utilize the combination services of
the Sea Horizon, currently working in the Southeast
Asia markets. Horizon was awarded the project man-
agement and installation of a 4-pile jacket and deck,
two 880-ton compressor modules, living quarters,
beach approach, pipeline installation, tie-in, and the
gauging and testing of multiple 10 to 20 inch
pipelines in various water depths. The project,
awarded in the fourth quarter of 2002, and com-
mencing in the second quarter 2003, will occur off the
coast of Brunei. The Sea Horizon has completed
upgrades for this project to accommodate a lift capac-
ity of 1,200 short tons.

Pipe Spooling

Part of Horizon’s expanded services is to offer pipe
spooling services to the industry. In 2002 we com-
pleted our pipe-spooling facility, located on the
Sabine River in Port Arthur, Texas. This recently built
complex provides the capability to weld pipe up to 18
inches in diameter, and access to docking, and the
loading and unloading of reel vessels commissioned
for deepwater work. We successfully completed our
first two projects in 2002 and commenced a third
spooling project in December.

7
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Locati

Horizon began in Y997 as a service provider for the

Gull ol Mexico. As

forizon grew. so did opportuni-
ties to expand bevond the domestic market. Over the

years, the company, ynder strong leadership and

sound financial strategies, has succeeded in penc-

trating markets across tf

globe. The cyclical nature

of the market caused byYdomestic seasonal weather

patterns, and the challenges of a sometimes difficult
economy, has been overcome by Horizon's foresight
to expand into international Bu ‘cas of ol and gas activity.

Now sp(mnm“ five umtlnnnl‘}; Horizon seeks to pro-

vide the same quality of acr\l{(‘ it continues o offer
ihe LS. Gulf of” Mexico. Horigon’s marine construe-
tion sérvices are available L();\.@m h Tatin American

markets as Mexico, Venes L‘(lld(i(ﬂ' Irinidad dﬂd

Brazil. ()['ﬁ((s bhased lu Smug\ﬁem( lndnm-sl A, dncl
Malaysia d(t;\’cl) s(‘(‘k"[)l ajects m Imlancsm Malay sia,
Thailund. Brunci, Australia, \u,\mam, Myanmar and

ln(lld The arrival of the Brazos Mmum in West Alrica

in 2002 hu(llds a/foothold in ‘thc oltshore marmc
S ‘
1\' of Nigeria gind Angola: Hon/()n

construction ll]dl‘:
has cmerged as a wmldwl(lc Ln;m) whose prcm ¢

will continue 1o be marked by project p]anmno and
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, Based out of Saﬁ‘ﬂ{e ass; Texas Marine Base. 7~
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Aflanﬁc Horizon

330 ‘x904 plpebu(y pacityof 60"

Based out of Sebine Pass, Texas Marine Base.
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Gulf Horizon
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Based out of Sabine Pfss Texas Marine Base.
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Lone Star Horizon

320" x 90', pipelay capacity of 39" ,jeﬂlré/capabthhes
Based out of Sabine Fiass, Texas Marme Base.

‘Pearl Horizon
184/x 45', dive support vessel.
Based ouf/of Sabine liass Texas Marine Base.

&

350" x 100", lift cap

[
city 011,000 short tons.
Based out of Sabine Pass Texas Marine Base.

N
350'x 71, pipelay capaclt} of 36", jetting capabrlmes

420'x 98’ lift cadacuty of 500 short tons
Based out of Sabmq} Pass , Texas Marine Ba
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Personmel

Brazos Horizon operating in West Africa.

Knowledge Anchored
by Experience

Atlontic Horizon installing flare boom in Mexico.

In order to be the best, Horizon requires the best.
Each employee contributes skills necessary to per-
form his or her individual job, and their combined
efforts make the company’s overall performance a
success. We have assembled a team of personnel who
bring industry knowledge, skill and technique to the
daily functions of the company. Just as importantly,
Horizon's employees are capable of problem solving
and creating solutions to meet the challenges of
industry operations.

While expanding operations into key international
areas, Horizon crosses multi-cultural boundaries to
ensure that customer satisfaction is achieved not only
from a domestic business perspective, but also with
regard to the demands of businesses in global
communities. Employees are dedicated to provide
customer satisfaction in any location, and committed
to the success of our operations. One of Horizon’s
most important resources has been, and will continue
to be, its capable and committed employees.

Brozos Horizon personnel undergoing
safety training.
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Dedicated to Quality and Safety

Horizon prides itself on continual improvement in
Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality (HSE&Q)
performance. In the third quarter of 2002, the com-
pany’s HSE management system received OHSAS-
18001 certification from the Norwegian classification
society Det Norske Veritas (DNV). This internation-
ally recognized certification is designed to assure that
all HSE management system elements are in place for
a continual improvement loop that starts with policy
and planning, risk assessment, procedure develop-
ment, implementation and operation, checking and
corrective action, and finally management review. It
assures all levels of the organization are involved in
the HSE management process, and is applicable to
Horizon’s worldwide operations.

In conjunction with obtaining OHSAS-18001 certifi-
cation, the company instituted an HSE observation
program centering on the recognition and correction
of behaviors that could lead to unsafe conditions and
near-miss incidents. Early recognition may prevent
potential injury to personnel, damage to the environ-
ment, or damage to assets.

OHSAS 18001
>
=
§ \ (=)
\=
tl \ N DN 03
DNV Certification, Inc. DNV Cenification, Inc.
CERTIFIED FIRM I8C 9001 REGISTERED

Atlantic Horizen performing ploiform
removal in Gulf of Mexico.

Additionally, the company was awarded ISO
9001:2000 accreditation by DNV for its Houston
based international operational support activities,
and its marine operations in Southeast Asia. Audit
and certification of Horizon’s remaining international
locations is planned for the remainder of 2003, and
into 2004. ISO 9001:2000 is an internationally recog-
nized accreditation for demonstrating that a com-
pany’s Quality Management System (QMS) has the
ability to consistently provide products and services
meeting customer, and applicable regulatory require-
ments, with the additional goal of enhancing cus-
tomer satisfaction. The QMS policies, procedures and
plans address the continual improvement loop from
the quality perspective and serve to complement the
HSE management system.

Horizon’s protection of personnel, the environment,
and assets, while providing a quality product on time
and in compliance with customer requirements, con-
tinues to be a core business value.
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Bill J. Lam
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Charles J. Boyle
Vice President,
Operational Accounting

George J. Friedel, [i
Vice President, Marine Operations

Corporate Management
Horizon’s management team has an average of
twenty five years experience in the oil and gas indus-

try. Each manager contributes to the strength of the
company’s operations through leadership and hands-
on interaction and by guiding and supporting the
efforts of each employee. Collectively, Horizon’s lead-

ers have directed the Company to achieve its goals
established five years ago and are confident and
focused on meeting the goals for the next five years.

R. Clay Etheridge
Executive Vice President and

Chief Operating Officer

.
Robert M, Cheves

Vice President,
Latin America Operations

William B. Gibbens, 11

Vice President and General Counsel

David W. Sharp
Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer

Thomas F. Cunningham
Vice President, Marketing and
Special Projects

Donald J. Hayden

Vice President, Human Resources
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Ron D. Mogel Gerald F. Palliser R. Dale Peltier

Vice President, Vice President, Vice President, Finance
International Accounting and Tax Development and Planning

George R. Reuter Charles B. Rouse Eric T. Stagg
Vice President, Vice President, HSE and Quality Vice President, International Projects
North America Projects

Robert T. Stonecipher John F. Swinden Th N. Whittingt

Vice President, Technical Services Vice President, Vice President, Procurement Services
Southeast Asia Operations



Office Locations

Corporate Office

Horizon Offshore, Inc.

2500 CityWest Blvd.

Houston, Texas USA 77042-3097
Toll Free: 877-361-2600

Tel: 713-361-2600

Fax: 713-361-2690

www.horizonoffshore.com

Gult of Mexico Marine Base

Horizon OHfshore Contractors, Inc.

7366 South st Ave.
Sabine Pass, Texas USA 77655
Tel: 409-984-2100
Fax: 409-984-2132

Gulf of Mexico Spool Base

Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc.

8200 Yacht Club Road

Port Arthur, Texas USA 77642
Toll Free: 877.962-6682

Fax: 409-962-4731

Indonesia

PT Horizon OHfshore Indonesia
JI Wolter Monginsidi No 9
Kebayoran Baru

Jakarta 12110 Indonesia

Tel: 62-21.739-5229

Fax: 62-21-720-7847

Indonesia Marine Base

PT Horizon Offshore Indonesia

c/o PT Luo Shipyard

JI Brigjend Katasmo KM 19, Tanjung Uncang
Batam Island, Indonesia

Tel: 62-778-395-473
Fax:62-778-394-081

Mexico

HOC Offshore, S. de R.L. de CV.
Calle 26 No194 (Entre 51y 53)

Santa Margarita, 24141

Ciudad del Carmen, Campeche, Mexico
Tel: 52-938-20894

Fax: 52-938-41650

Singapore

Horizon Offshore Pte. Ltd.
435 Orchard Road #15-03
Wisma Atria

Singapore 238877

Tel: 65-6737-3386

Fax: 65-6737-3115

Malaysia

Horizon Offshore Contractors (M) SDN BHD
WISMA UOQALI

No. 21Jalan Pinang

50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

(Please contact our Singapore office):

Tel: 65-6737-3386

Fax: 65-6737-3115

West Africa

Horizon Marine Construction, Ltd.
1, Abimbola Awoliyi Close

Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria

Tel: 234-0-1-262-6519

Fax: 234-0-1-262-6519
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[tems 1. and 2. Business And Properties

General

We provide marine construction services to the offshore oil and gas industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico,
Latin America, Southeast Asia and West Africa. Our fleet consists of thirteen vessels, twelve of which are
currently operational. Qur primary services include:

o installing pipelines;

o providing pipebury, hook-up and commissioning services;

o installing production platforms and other structures;

o disassembling and salvaging production platforms and other structures; and
o performing pipe spooling services.

We have our principal executive offices at 2500 CityWest Boulevard, Suite 2200, Houston, Texas 77042.
Qur telephone number is (713) 361-2600. Our Internet address is www.horizonoffshore.com. Copies of the
annual, quarterly and current reports we file with the SEC, and any amendments to those reports, are available
on our web site free of charge. The information posted on our web site is not incorporated into this Annual
Report.

Industry Conditions

Our operating results are directly tied to industry demand for our services, and, to a lesser degree,
seasonal impact. The demand for our services depends on the level of capital expenditures by oil and gas
companies for developmental construction. Due to the time required to drill a well and fabricate a production
platform, demand for our services usually lags exploratory drilling by nine to eighteen months and sometimes
longer.

The marine construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico historically has been highly seasonal with
contracts typically awarded in the spring and early summer and performed before the onset of adverse weather
conditions in the winter. The scheduling of much of our work is affected by weather conditions and many
projects are performed within a relatively short period of time. We believe that the seasonality of our core
operations in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and Latin America should be offset by our continuing efforts to expand
our operations in international areas, such as offshore Southeast Asia and West Africa, where marine
construction services historically have been less seasonal. The locations of these regions and the timing of
customers’ awards should provide a counter-seasonal balance to our operations in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.
International construction projects also typically have longer lead times with extended job durations of up to
one to two years.

Scope of Operations

We are a leading provider of marine construction services in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and offshore
Mexico. Profit margins in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico have been reduced by continued highly competitive
conditions during 2002 due to reductions in capital expenditures by oil and gas companies for developmental
construction caused by the general slow down of the U.S. economy, and concerns over U.S. natural gas pricing
trends.

During 2002, we laid 278 miles of pipe of various diameters in various depths. We can install and bury
pipelines with an outside diameter (including concrete coating) of up to 48 inches. Also in 2002, we
performed a total of 70 pipeline construction contracts, and installed or removed 31 offshore platforms. We
can install platforms of up to 1,200 tons using our derrick barges.
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We completed two projects for Petroleos Mexicanos (Pemex) utilizing the Atlantic Horizon, Lone Star
Horizon and Pearl Horizon during 2002. We began another project for Pemex in May 2002 that was
completed during the first quarter of 2003. The Brazos Horizon arrived in Nigerian waters in the fourth
quarter of 2002, and began work on a major portion of Chevron Nigeria Ltd.’s Escravos Offshore Pipeline and
Structural Installation two year program in February 2003. During 2002, we also successfully completed
several pipeline and installation projects in Southeast Asia. We completed a subcontract in 2002 for the
installation and burial of a 20-inch pipeline for TotalFinaElf in Indonesia utilizing the Sea Horizon for all
aspects of the installation. In the domestic sector, we mobilized the Gulf Horizon to begin construction of a
pipeline installation and burial project in Long Island Sound, New York in May 2002. We were awarded the
contract to install 35 miles of 24-inch diameter pipe to transport natural gas from Northport, Long Island to
Hunts Point, New York via the Long Island Sound and East River. Preparations for the project included
extensive environmental training of personnel. The Gulf Horizon was upgraded for inclement weather
conditions and for the addition of automatic welding equipment. This pipeline installation also included the
design, fabrication and use of a 110-ton plow to bury the 24-inch pipeline below the seabed and riverbed.
Construction activities commenced in November 2002, and we expect to substantially complete the project
during the second quarter of 2003.

We completed the construction of a spooling facility at our marine base in Port Arthur, Texas in the first
quarter of 2002, We successfully completed two spooling projects and commenced a third spool job in
December 2002 that was successfully completed in the first quarter of 2003.

Our fleet of seven pipelay and pipebury vessels install and bury pipelines of various diameters. Our
pipelay vessels employ conventional S-lay technology which is appropriate for operating on the
U.S. continental shelf and the international areas where we currently operate. Conventional pipeline
installation involves the sequential assembly of pieces of pipe through an assembly line of welding stations that
run the length of the pipelay vessel. Welds are then inspected and coated on the deck of the pipelay barge. The
pipe is then supported off the stern and into the water via a ramp that is referred to as a “pontoon” or
“stinger.” The ramp supports the pipe to some distance under the water and prevents over-stressing as it
curves into a horizontal position toward the sea floor. The barge is then moved forward by its anchor winches
and the pipeline is laid on the sea floor. The suspended pipe forms an elongated “S” shape as it undergoes a
second bend above the contact point. During the pipelay process, divers regularly inspect the pipeline to ensure
that the ramp is providing proper support and that the pipeline is settling correctly.

Pipelines installed on the U.S. continental shelf or located in water depths of 200 feet or less are required
by the regulations of the United States Department of Interior’s Minerals Management Service to be buried at
least three feet below the sea floor. Jet sleds towed behind pipelay/pipebury barges are used to bury pipelines
on smaller pipe installation projects. Towed jet sleds are less likely to damage the pipeline being laid or any
existing pipelines that the pipeline may cross. Towed jet sleds use a high-pressure stream of air and water
which is pumped from the barge to create a trench into which the pipe settles. For larger pipe burying projects,
or where deeper trenching is required, we use the Canyon Horizon, our dedicated bury barge. It is one of only
two dedicated pipebury barges operating in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and can bury pipelines more efficiently
and to greater depths than any other vessel in the Gulf. We match our burying approach to the requirements of
each specific contract by using the Canyon Horizon for larger projects and our towed jet sleds behind pipelay
barges for smaller projects. We also use the Pecos Horizon for larger pipebury projects.

Our fleet also includes the Pear! Horizon, a multi-purpose vessel. This vessel performs diving support
services such as connecting pipelines to platforms and other pipelines (tie-ins) and filling pipelines with water
under pressure to test the integrity of the system. The Pear! Horizon’s capabilities have also been expanded to
permit it to tow other vessels. Our dynamically positioned diving support vessel, the Stephaniturm, was under
charter in the North Sea throughout 2002. The Stephaniturm is currently undergoing scheduled maintenance
and is available for charter hire.

We install and remove or salvage offshore fixed platforms. We have substantially expanded our operating
capabilities in this market area in the last three years. We have three derrick barges equipped with cranes
designed to lift and place platforms, structures or equipment into position for installation. In addition, they are
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used to disassemble and remove platforms and prepare them for salvage or refurbishment. We acquired and
upgraded a derrick barge, the Pacific Horizon, with a lift capacity of 1000 tons to complement the Atlantic
Horizon that has a 550 ton lift capacity. The Sea Horizon is also utilized to install and remove offshore fixed
platforms and its lift capacity was recently upgraded from 800 tons to 1200 tons. The Sea Horizon is 360 feet
long and 100 feet wide and has both pipelay and derrick capabilities. It was deployed early in 2002 and has
successfully completed several projects in Southeast Asia.

Inventory consists of production platforms and other marine structures received from time to time as
partial consideration from salvage projects performed in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. These structures are held
for resale.

Our alliance with Cal Dive International, Inc. (Cal Dive) in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico includes surface
diving, which is done to inspect the pipeline as it is being laid, menitor the pipebury activities, connect
pipelines to production platforms and assist derrick barges in the installation and removal of structures. We
believe that having Cal Dive perform our surface diving allows us to concentrate on our core activities and
improve efficiencies.

Our customers award contracts by means of a highly competitive bidding process. In preparing a bid, we
must consider a variety of factors, including estimated time necessary to complete the project, the recovery
equipment and the location and duration of current and future projects. We have placed a strong emphasis on
attempting to sequentially structure scheduled work in adjacent areas. Sequential scheduling reduces
mobilization and demobilization time and costs associated with each project and increases profitability. We
employ core groups of experienced offshore personnel that work together on particular types of projects to
increase our bidding accuracy. We often obtain the services of workers outside our core employee groups by
subcontracting with other parties. Our management examines the results of each bid submitted, reevaluates
bids, and implements a system of controls to maintain and improve the accuracy of the bidding process. The
accuracy of the various estimates in preparing a bid is critical to our profitability.

Our contracts are typically of short duration in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico, being completed in periods as
short as several days to periods of up to several months for projects involving our larger pipelay vessels.
International construction projects, such as our projects offshore Mexico with Pemex, have longer lead times
and extended job duration. We perform most of our projects on a fixed-price or “lump sum” basis, although a
few projects are performed on a cost-plus basis. Under a fixed-price contract, the price stated in the contract is
subject to adjustment only for change orders placed by the customer. As a result, we are responsible for all
cost overruns. Furthermore, our profitability under a fixed-price contract is reduced when the contract takes
longer to complete than estimated. Similarly, our profitability will be increased if we can perform the contract
ahead of schedule. Under cost-plus arrangements, we receive a specified fee in excess of direct labor and
material cost and are protected against cost overruns, but do not benefit directly from improved performance.



Marine Equipment

The following table describes our marine vessels.

Maximum

Maximum Pipelay

Length Derrick Lift Diameter

Vessel Vessel Type (feet) (tons) (inches)
American Horizon ........................ Pipelay/Pipebury 180 — 20
Cajun Horizon ........................... Pipelay/Pipebury 140 — 12
Lone Star Horizon . ....................... Pipelay/Pipebury 320 — 48
Gulf Horizon ..............cciviiiian. Pipelay/Pipebury 350 — 42
Brazos Horizon........................ ... Pipelay/Pipebury 210 — 36
Pecos Horizon.................c...iinn. Pipelay/Pipebury 250 — 36
Sea Horizon ............. ... . oo, Derrick/Pipelay 360 1,200 36
Pearl Horizon . ........... ... .. oo, Diving Support Vessel 184 — —
Stephaniturm ................ ... .. .. ..... Diving Support Vessel 230 — —
Canyon Horizon . ......................... Pipebury 330 — —
Atlantic Horizon................. ... ..... Derrick Barge 420 550 —
Pacific Horizon. ............. ... .. ..., Derrick Barge 350 1,000 —
Phoenix Horizon(1)............ . oo, Derrick/Pipelay 300 250 24

(1) Currently, the Phoenix Horizon is not active.

We own all of our marine vessels and have placed mortgages on them to collateralize our debt. See
Note 5 of our notes to our consolidated financial statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.” Under governmental
regulations and our insurance policies, we are required to maintain the vessels in accordance with standards of
seaworthiness, safety and health prescribed by governmental regulations and applicable vessel classification
societies. We believe we are in compliance with all governmental regulations and insurance policies regarding
the operation and maintenance of our vessels.

In the normal course of our operations, we also lease or charter other vessels, such as diving support
vessels, tugboats, cargo barges, utility boats and support vessels.

On September 20, 2002, the pipelay barge, Lone Star Horizon, sustained electrical damage due to a fire
while at anchor off Ciudad Del Carmen, Mexico. Repairs to the Lone Star Horizon were completed during the
fourth quarter of 2002 at a cost of $5.0 million. We maintain hull and machinery insurance to cover physical
damage to our vessels. This insurance coverage provides for both a $0.5 million occurrence deductible and a
$1.5 million annual aggregate deductible. During 2002, we recorded this $2.0 million loss as other expense,
and we believe the insurance will cover the cost to repair the damage. As of December 31, 2002, we included
the $3.0 miilion insurance claim in current assets. We collected an initial reimbursement of $1.2 million in
February 2003.

Cal Dive Joint Venture

In March 2001, we formed a joint venture, 50% owned by us, with Cal Dive to perform small diameter,
deepwater reel pipelaying projects in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico with the Intrepid, a vessel owned by Cal Dive.
Operations of the joint venture would be jointly managed and staffed. If both Cal Dive and Horizon decide to
commence joint venture operations, we would be required to contribute approximately $8 million for the
design, construction and installation of reel pipelaying equipment on the Intrepid that was completed in 2002.
Based on current market conditions, we do not know when, or if, the joint venture will become operational.
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Safety and Quality Assurance

We are concerned with the safety and health of our employees and maintain a stringent safety assurance
program to reduce the possibility of costly accidents. Our health, safety and environmental department
establishes guidelines to ensure compliance with all applicable state, federal and foreign safety regulations. We
also provide training and safety education through new employee orientations, which include first aid and CPR
training. In addition, prospective and current employees must submit to alcohol and drug testing. After each
accident or other health or safety occurrence, we promptly collect data concerning the incident, perform
further investigations, and evaluate our safety procedures to help prevent similar incidents.

In the third quarter of 2002, our health, safety and environmental management system received
OHSAS-18001 certification from the Norwegian classification society Det Norske Veritas (DNV). This
internationally recognized certification is applicable to our health, safety and environmental management
system for our worldwide operations. Additionally, we were awarded ISO 9001:2000 accreditation by DNV for
our Houston-based international operational support activities and marine operations in Southeast Asia. ISO
9001:2000 is an internationally recognized accreditation for demonstrating that a company’s Quality Manage-
ment System has the ability to consistently provide products and services meeting customer and applicable
regulatory requirements, and with the additional goal of enhancing customer satisfaction. We believe that our
safety program and commitment to quality are vital to attracting and retaining customers and employees, and
controlling costs.

Customers

We have domestic and international operations in one industry, the marine construction service industry
to offshore oil and gas companies. Our customers in the U.S. have primarily been the oil and gas companies
operating on the U.S. outer continental shelf. In 2002, we provided offshore marine construction services to
approximately 41 customers. Our single largest customer during the last three years was Pemex. We
completed one major project for a subsidiary of Pemex in 2001 and completed two major projects for Pemex in
2002, and we completed another project during the first quarter of 2003. Pemex accounted for 30.6% of our
revenues for the year 2002, compared to 52.2% of revenues for 2001 and 36.1% of revenues for 2000. In
addition, Iroquois Gas Transmission System LP accounted for 19.7% of consolidated revenues for the year
2002. There were no other customers accounting for more than 10% of consolidated revenues for 2002, 2001 or
2000.

Cumulative revenues recognized from 2000 through 2002 on all Pemex projects in Mexico total
$286.8 million, including $57.0 million of claims made under three Pemex contracts for extra work related to
interferences, interruptions and other delays. Of the $57.0 million of claims, $54.2 million relates to our second
major project for Pemex, which was completed during the fourth quarter of 2002. The remaining $2.8 million
of claims relates to two more recent projects for Pemex. Unapproved claims related to the Pemex projects
developed primarily from client delays and changes in the initial scope of work.

The level of construction services required by a customer depends on the size of its capital expenditure
budget for construction for the year and our ability to bid for and be awarded its projects. Consequently,
customers that account for a significant portion of contract revenues in one year may represent an immaterial
portion of contract revenues in subsequent years. Most of our U.S. contracts are typically of short duration,
being completed in periods as short as several days to periods of up to several months. Many of our
international construction projects have longer lead times and extended job durations.

Backlog

As of December 31, 2002, our backlog supported by written agreements totaled approximately
$123.6 million, compared to our backlog at December 31, 2001 of approximately $63.0 million. Cur backlog
has typically been lower in the first and fourth quarters of the year due to the seasonality and weather
conditions in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico during the winter months. As we increase the scope of our international
operations, where projects tend to have longer lead times and result in earlier awards, our backlog may
increase. We do not consider backlog amounts to be a reliable indicator of annual revenues.
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Seasonality, Cyclicality and Factors Affecting Demand

The marine construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico historically has been highly seasonal with
contracts being awarded in the spring and early summer and performed before the onset of adverse weather
conditions in the winter. The scheduling of much of our work is affected by weather conditions and other
factors, and many projects are performed within a relatively short period of time. We have attempted to offset
the seasonality of our core operations in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and Latin America by expanding our
operations to international areas, such as offshore Southeast Asia and West Africa, where marine construction
services historically have been less seasonal. We believe the locations of these regions and the timing of
customers’ awards provide a counter-seasonal balance to our domestic operations, which we believe offset
adverse weather conditions in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico in the first and fourth quarters.

The level and volatility of oil and gas prices have a strong effect on exploration and production activities
offshore which ultimately affect the demand for our services. Capital expenditures of oil and gas companies
are influenced by:

o the price of oil and gas and industry perception of future prices;

o the ability of the oil and gas industry to access capital;

e the cost of exploring for, producing and developing oil and gas reserves;

o sale and expiration dates of offshore leases in the United States and abroad;
o discovery rates of new oil and gas reserves in offshore areas; and

o local and international political and economic conditions.

Insurance

Cur operations are subject to the inherent risks of offshore marine activity, including accidents resulting
in the loss of life or property, environmental mishaps, mechanical failures and collisions. We insure against
these risks at levels we believe are consistent with industry standards. Our insurance premiums required to
cover these risks significantly increased during 2001 and 2002 due to losses in the insurance industry. In
addition, the terrorist attacks that took place on September 11, 2001 further contributed to losses in the
insurance industry and may impact our ability to renew our existing coverage in the future.

We believe that our insurance is adequate to cover the cost of replacing any of our vessels that are lost
and most other offshore risks. However, certain risks are either not insurable or insurance is available only at
rates that are not economical. We cannot assure that any such insurance will be sufficient or effective under all
circumstances or against all hazards to which we may be subject.

Competition

The marine construction industry is highly competitive. Competition is influenced by such factors as
price, availability and capability of equipment and personnel, and reputation and experience of management.
Contracts for work in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico are typically awarded on a competitive bid basis one to three
months prior to commencement of operations. Customers usually request bids from companies they believe
are technically qualified to perform the project. Our marketing staff contacts offshore operators known to have
projects scheduled to ensure an opportunity to bid for these projects. Although we believe customers consider,
among other things, the availability and technical capabilities of equipment and personnel, the condition of
equipment and the efficiency and safety record of the contractor, price is the primary factor in determining
which qualified contractor is awarded the contract. Because of the lower degree of complexity and capital costs
involved in shallow water marine construction activities, there are a number of companies with one or more
pipelay barges capable of installing pipelines in shallow water. We currently compete in the Gulf in water
depths of 200 feet or less primarily with Global Industries, Ltd., Torch Offshore, Inc. and a few other smaller
contractors. In projects in water depths of 200 feet or more or where a higher degree of complexity is involved,
competition generally is limited to Global Industries and from time to time other international companies that
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may have vessels operating in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. We compete primarily with Global Industries and
Offshore Specialty Fabricators, Inc. for the installation and removal of production platforms. We believe that
our reputation, experienced management and competitive pricing are key advantages.

Internationally, the marine construction industry is dominated by a small number of major international
construction companies and government owned or controlled companies that operate in specific areas or on a
joint venture basis with one or more of the major international construction companies.

Regulation

Many aspects of the offshore marine construction industry are subject to extensive governmental
regulation. Our United States operations are subject to the jurisdiction of the United States Coast Guard, the
National Transportation Safety Board and the Customs Service, as well as private industry organizations such
as the American Bureau of Shipping. The Coast Guard and the National Transportation Safety Board set
safety standards and are authorized to investigate vessel accidents and recommend improved safety standards,
and the Customs Service is authorized to inspect vessels at will.

We are required by various governmental and quasi-governmental agencies to obtain permits, licenses
and certificates in connection with our operations. We believe that we have obtained or will be able to obtain,
when required, all permits, licenses and certificates necessary to conduct our business.

In addition, we depend on the demand for our services from the oil and gas industry and, therefore, our
business is affected by laws and regulations, as well as changing taxes and policies relating to the oil and gas
industry. In particular, the exploration and development of oil and gas properties located on the continental
shelf of the United States is regulated primarily by the Minerals Management Service. The Minerals
Management Service must approve and grant permits in connection with drilling and development plans
submitted by oil and gas companies. Delays in the approval of plans and issuance of permits by the Minerals
Management Service because of staffing, economic, environmental or other reasons could adversely affect our
operations by limiting demand for services.

Certain of our employees are covered by provisions of the Jones Act, the Death on the High Seas Act and
general maritime law. These laws make liability limits under state workers’ compensation laws inapplicable
and permit these employees to bring suit for job related injuries with generally no limits on our potential
liability.

Environmental Regulation

Our operations are affected by numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
protection of the environment, including the Quter Continental Shelf Lands Act, the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act of 1972 and the Oil Pollution Act of 1990. The technical requirements of these laws and
regulations are becoming increasingly complex and stringent, and compliance is becoming increasingly
difficult and expensive. Certain environmental laws provide for “strict liability” for remediation of spills and
releases of hazardous substances and some provide liability for damages to natural resources or threats to
public health and safety. Sanctions for noncompliance may include revocation of permits, corrective action
orders, administrative or civil penalties, and criminal prosecution. It is possible that changes in the
environmental laws and enforcement policies, or claims for damages to persons, property, natural resources or
the environment could result in substantial costs and liabilities. Our insurance policies provide liability
coverage for sudden and accidental occurrences of pollution and/or clean-up and containment of the foregoing
in amounts that we believe are comparable to policy limits carried by others in the offshore construction
industry.

Employees

As of January 31, 2003, we had approximately 717 employees, including 501 operating personnel and 216
corporate, administrative and management personnel. We are employing approximately 32 union laborers for
our project in Long Island Sound, New York, pursuant to a project specific labor agreement. Our remaining
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685 employees are not unionized or employed pursuant to any collective bargaining agreement or any similar
agreement. We believe our relationship with our employees is good.

Cur ability to expand operations and meet any increased demand for our services depends on our ability
to increase our workforce. A significant increase in the wages paid by competing employers could result in a
reduction in the skilled labor force, and/or increases in the wage rates paid. If either of these circumstances
takes place to the extent that such wage increases could not be passed on to our customers, our growth and
profitability could be impaired.

Properties

Our corporate headquarters is located in Houston, Texas, in approximately 94,000 square feet of leased
space under leases expiring from 2006 to 2008. In addition, we lease approximately 37,000 square feet of office
space in various international locations under leases expiring from 2003 to 2006.

We own and operate a marine support base and storage facility (for marine structures that may be
salvaged by our marine fleet) from approximately 23 acres with approximately 6,000 feet of waterfront on a
peninsula in Sabine Lake near Port Arthur, Texas with direct access to the Gulf. The facility has more than
3,000 feet of deepwater access for docking barges and vessels. We also own and operate a marine support and
spool base located on 26 acres of waterfront property in Sabine, Texas. This marine base includes 1,700 feet of
bulkhead, 59,000 square feet of office and warehouse space, and two heliports. We also lease approximately
19,000 square feet of land in Morgan City, Louisiana for inventory storage on a month-to-month basis.

Cautionary Statements

Certain statements made in this Annual Report that are not historical facts are intended to be “forward-
looking statements.” Such forward-looking statements may include statements that relate to:

o our business plans or strategies, and projected or anticipated benefits or other consequences of such
plans or strategies;

< our objectives;
o projected or anticipated benefits from future or past acquisitions; and

o projections involving anticipated capital expenditures or revenues, earnings or other aspects of capital
projects or operating results.

9 &k

Also, you can generally identify forward-looking statements by such terminology as “may,” “will,”
“expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “project,” “estimate” or similar expressions. We caution you that such
statements are only predictions and not guarantees of future performance or events. In evaluating these
statements, you should consider various risk factors, including but not limited to the risks listed below. These
risk factors may affect the accuracy of the forward-looking statements and the projections on which the
statements are based.

L2 N3 9 &

All phases of our operations are subject to a number of uncertainties, risks and other influences, many of
which are beyond our control. Any one of such influences, or a combination, could materially affect the results
of our operations and the accuracy of forward-looking statements made by us. Some important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in
our forward-looking statements include the following:

o Pemex’s approval of claims and the outcome of these claims, and our ability to manage our liquidity
needs pending the timing of collection of our receivables and claims from Pemex;

o industry volatility, including the level of capital expenditures by oil and gas companies due to
fluctuations in the price and perceptions of the future price of oil and gas;

o risks of growth strategy, including the risks of rapid growth;
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operating hazards, including the unpredictable effect of natural occurrences on operations and the
significant possibility of accidents resulting in personal injury and property damage;

» the highly competitive nature of the marine construction business;

o dependence on the continued strong working relationships with significant customers operating in the
U.S. Gulf of Mexico;

o seasonality of the offshore construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico;

o ability to realize carrying values of salvaged structures;

o the need for additional financing;

o contract bidding risks;

o percentage-of-completion accounting;

o successful negotiation and collection of contract claims;

 continued active participation of our executive officers and key operating personnel;

o the effect on our performance of regulatory programs and environmental matters;

o risks involved in the expansion of our operations into international offshore oil and gas producing areas;

o risks involved in joint venture operations, including difficulty in resolving disputes with present partners
or reaching agreements with future partners; and

> a terrorist attack and a prolonged war with Iraq.

Many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. We caution investors not to place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We disclaim any intent or obligation to update the forward-
looking statements contained in this report, whether as a result of receiving new information, the occurrence of
future events or otherwise.

A more detailed discussion of the foregoing factors follows:

The approval and timing of collection of receivables and claims from Pemex may adversely affect our
ligquidity and financing requirements

Our receivables from Pemex continue to impact our liquidity and operating cash flows. As of
December 31, 2002, we have recognized contract receivables of $14.2 million and costs in excess of billings of
$62.7 million from Pemex totaling $76.9 million. The significant delays between the completion of the work
and when it is billed and collected are caused by Pemex’s rigid requirements on the submission, review and
approval of invoices and documentation prior to their payment of contract claims and change orders. As of
December 31, 2002, there were $57.0 million of claims, which we have recognized as revenue, made under
three Pemex contracts for extra work related to interferences, interruptions and other delays, with the majority
of this amount related to our second major contract that was completed in the fourth quarter of 2002.

During November 2002, we engaged a consulting firm in Mexico to assist us in the administration of the
claims to be made against Pemex. After considering the time necessary for the consultants to comply with
Pemex’s requirements and communication with new Pemex management, we believe that it will take longer to
process and collect these claims than previously expected. We now expect to formally submit these claims in
accordance with Pemex’s requirements through the second quarter of 2003, with collections expected by the
end of the third quarter of 2003. The unapproved claims we have included as revenue through December 31,
2002 are expected to be substantially less than the actual claims to be presented to Pemex, and we believe we
will collect more than the claim amounts recorded. However, there is a risk that the unapproved claims we
have recognized as revenue may not be collected in full. Should these unapproved claims become uncollectible
based upon subsequent events, we will recognize a loss in our financial statements at that time. There may be
factors other than the submission, review and approval of our claims which are outside our control that may
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‘impact the ultimate collectibility of these amounts. We have considered factors including changes that have
occurred related to Pemex employees involved in the project, the operating structure of Pemex, and the
political and economic conditions in Mexico in assessing the collectibility of these amounts.

Our ability to service our existing debt, provide working capital and fund our capital expenditure
requirements will be affected by our ability to collect our Pemex receivables and claims. We believe that our
cash on hand, together with cash provided by operations and available borrowings under our revolving credit
facilities, will be sufficient to fund our debt service requirements, working capital and capital expenditures for
at least the next year barring any unforeseen circumstances. If current activity levels continue in the U.S. Gulf
of Mexico or if we are unsuccessful in collecting our Pemex receivables and claims as expected, it would
require us to depend more heavily on our existing revolving credit facilities and possibly refinance some or all
of our indebtedness in order to increase our total borrowing capability if we cannot obtain additional financing
from our existing lenders. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtedness,
including our existing revolving credit facilities, on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Industry volatility may adversely affect results of operations

The demand for our services depends on the level of capital expenditures by oil and gas companies for
developmental construction. As a result, the cyclical nature of the oil and gas industry has a significant effect
on our revenues and profitability. Historically, prices of oil and gas, as well as the level of exploration and
developmental activity, have fluctuated substantially. Any significant decline in the worldwide demand for oil
and gas, or prolonged low oil or gas prices in the future, will likely depress development activity. We are
unable to predict future oil and gas prices or the level of oil and gas industry activity. A prolonged low level of
activity in offshore drilling and exploration will adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

Our rapid growth and growth strategy involve visks

We have undergone rapid growth both internally and through acquisitions of additional barges and
vessels. Future acquisitions of other complementary businesses and marine equipment are key elements of our
growth strategy. If we are unable to purchase additional equipment or other vessels on favorable financial or
other terms or to manage acquired businesses or vessels, this could adversely affect our revenues and
profitability. We cannot assure that we will be able to identify or acquire equipment or businesses. In addition,
any such future acquisitions may involve potential delays and increased costs. If we acquire new vessels, we
may need to upgrade or refurbish the vessels. If we experience delays or cost increases in upgrading or
refurbishing the vessels, our operating results will be negatively affected.

Operating hazards may increase our operating cosis; we have limited insurance coverage

Offshore censtruction involves a high degree of operational risk. Risks of vessels capsizing, sinking,
grounding, colliding and sustaining damage from severe weather conditions are inherent in offshore operations.
These hazards may cause significant personal injury or property damage, environmental damage, and
suspension of operations. In addition, we may be named as a defendant in lawsuits involving potentially large
claims as a result of such occurrences. Our insurance premiums required to cover these risks significantly
increased during 2001 and 2002 due to losses in the insurance industry. In addition, the terrorist attacks that
took place on September 11, 2001 further contributed to losses in the insurance industry and may impact our
ability to renew our existing coverage in the future. We maintain what we believe is prudent insurance
protection. However, we cannot assure that our insurance will be sufficient or effective under all circum-
stances. A successful claim for which we are not fully insured may have a material adverse effect on our
revenues and profitability.

We operate in a highly competitive industry

Our business is highly competitive because construction companies operating offshore compete vigorously
for available projects, which are typically awarded on a competitive bid basis. This competitive bid process

11




could adversely affect our growth because our expansion strategy depends on being awarded projects in areas
where we have not performed operations.

Several of our competitors and potential competitors are larger and have greater financial and other
resources. Competitors with greater financial resources may be willing to sustain losses on certain projects to
prevent further market entry by other competitors. In addition, marine construction vessels have few
alternative uses and high maintenance costs, whether they are operating or not. As a result, some companies
may bid contracts at rates below our rates. These factors may adversely affect the number of contracts that are
awarded to us and the profit margins on those contracts which are awarded to us. Additionally, as a result of
the competitive bidding process, our significant customers vary over time,

The seasonality of the marine construction industry may adversely affect our operations

Historically, the greatest demand for marine construction services in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico has been
during the period from May to September. This seasonality of the construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico is caused both by weather conditions and by the historical timing of capital expenditures by oil and gas
companies which accompanies this. As a result, revenues are typically higher in the summer months and lower
in the winter months. Although we are in the process of offsetting U.S. Gulf of Mexico seasonality by pursuing
business opportunities in international areas, we cannot assure that such expansion will offset the seasonality of
our operations in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.

Our acquisition growth strategy may require additional financing

Our acquisition strategy may require significant amounts of additional capital. We may have to issue
additional equity securities or incur additional debt in connection with such acquisitions.

We incur risks associated with contract bidding

Substantially all of our projects are performed on a fixed-price basis. Changes in offshore job conditions
and variations in labor and equipment productivity may affect the revenue and costs on a contract. These
variations may affect our gross profits. In addition, typically during the summer construction season, and
occasionally during the winter season, we bear the risk of delays caused by adverse weather conditions.

We utilize percentage-of-completion accounting

Since our contract revenues are recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis, we periodically review
contract revenue and cost estimates as the work progresses. Accordingly, adjustments are reflected in income
in the period when such revisions are determined. These adjustments could result in a reduction of previously
reported profits, which may be significant.

We are dependent on key personnel

Our success depends on, among other things, the continued active participation of our executive officers
and certain of our other key operating personnel. Our officers and personnel have extensive experience in the
marine construction industry, both domestic and international. The loss of the services of any one of these
persons could adversely impact our ability to implement our expansion strategy.

We may incur additional expenditures to comply with governmental regulations

Our operations are subject to various governmental regulations, violations of which may result in civil and
criminal penalties, injunctions, and cease and desist orders. In addition, some environmental statutes may
impose liability without regard to negligence or fault. Although our cost of compliance with such laws has to
date been immaterial, such laws are changed frequently. Accordingly, it is impossible to predict the cost or
impact of such laws on our future operations.

We depend on demand for our services from the oil and gas industry, and this demand may be affected by
changing tax laws and oil and gas regulations. As a result, the adoption of laws which curtail oil and gas
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production in our areas of operation may adversely affect us. We cannot determine to what extent our
operations may be affected by any new regulations or changes in existing regulations.

QOur international operations ave subject to significant risks

A key element of our expansion strategy has been to expand our operations into selected international oil
and gas producing areas, which we will continue to do. These international operations are subject to a number
of risks inherent in any business operating in foreign countries including, but not limited to:

o political, social, and economic instability;

o potential seizure or nationalization of assets;

o increased operating costs;

o modification or renegotiating of contracts;

> import-export quotas; and

o other forms of government regulation which are beyond our control.

Our international operations have not yet been affected materially by such conditions or events, but if our
international operations expand, the exposure to these risks will increase. As a result, we could, at any one
time, have a significant amount of our revenues generated by operating activity in a particular country.
Therefore, our results of operations could be susceptible to adverse events beyond our control that could occur
in the particular country in which we are conducting such operations.

Additionally, our competitiveness in international areas may be adversely affected by regulations,
including but not limited to regulations requiring:

o the awarding of contracts to local contractors;
o the employment of local citizens; and

o the establishment of foreign subsidiaries with significant ownership positions reserved by the foreign
government for local citizens.

We cannot predict what types of the above events may occur.

There are risks associated with our joint venture operations

We anticipate entering into joint ventures with entities as we expand into other international areas. We
cannot assure that we will undertake such joint ventures or, if undertaken, that such joint ventures will be
successful.

A tervorist attack and e prolonged war with Iraq

The terrorist attacks that took place on September 11, 2001 in the U.S. were unprecedented events that
have created many economic and political uncertainties, and highlight the impact that future similar terrorist
attacks could have on broader economic and political factors that indirectly affect our business and demand for
marine construction services. The potential for future terrorist attacks, the national and international response
to terrorist attacks, including a prolonged war with Iraq, and other acts of war or hostility have created many
economic and political uncertainties, which could adversely affect our business for the short or long-term in
ways that cannot presently be predicted.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various routine legal proceedings primarily involving claims for personal injury under
the Jones Act and general maritime laws which we believe are incidental to the conduct of our business. We
believe that none of these proceedings, if adversely determined, would have a material adverse effect on our
business or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to & Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant

Listed below are the names, ages and offices held by our executive officers as of March 1, 2003.

Name Age Offices Held

BillJ.Lam........................... 36 President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

David W. Sharp.................... ... 49 Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

R. Clay Etheridge . .................... 48 Executive Vice President and Chief

Operating Officer

QOur executive officers are appointed by our board of directors, subject to their rights under employment
agreements.

Bill J. Lam is our President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director. Mr. Lam has served as our President
and Chief Executive Officer since December 1997. From July 1997 to November 1997, Mr. Lam was our Vice
President — Operations. Prior to being employed by us, Mr. Lam held various supervisory positions for the
following providers of marine construction services to the offshore oil and gas industry: Lowe Offshore, Inc.
(from January 1997 to July 1997), J. Ray McDermott, S.A. (from January 1995 to January 1997), and OPI
International, Inc. (from August 1990 to January 1995).

David W. Sharp is an Executive Vice President and our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Sharp has served as
our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since December 1997. From October 1996 to
November 1997, Mr. Sharp was Vice President — Finance. He held various positions from January 1995 to
October 1996 with McDermott, including world-wide project leader for the implementation of accounting and
financial systems. He was controller-Atlantic Division and Director of Management Information of OPI
International from November 1990 to January 1995,

R. Clay Etheridge is an Executive Vice President and our Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Etheridge has
served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer since September 1999. Prior to joining us,
Mr. Etheridge served as Vice President of International Operations for Global Industries from March 1997 to
September 1999. Mr. Etheridge has held executive management positions with McDermott in Southeast Asia,
and OPI International, with responsibility for U.S. Gulf of Mexico and West African operations, and served as
operations manager for Heerema Marine Contractors.
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PART [T

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “HOFF”. At
March 3, 2003, we had approximately 30 holders of record of our common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and low closing bid prices per share of our common stock, as
reported by the NASDAQ National Market, for the periods indicated.

2002 2001
Fiscal Quarter High Low High Low
2] AP $11.82  $6.05 $25.00 $16.50
Second. . ..o e $13.12  $7.77  $25.05 $12.54
Third ... e $ 8.15 $421 $14.02 § 530
Fourth .. .. $ 614 $462 $859 §$ 543

We intend to retain all of the cash our business generates to fund future growth and meet our working
capital requirements. We do not plan to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. In
addition, our debt agreements currently prevent us from paying dividends or making other distributions to our
stockholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Infermation

The following table provides information regarding common stock authorized for issuance under our

equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2002;
Number of Securities
Remaining Available
Weighted-Average For Future Issuance

Number of Securities Exercise Price of Under Equity
to be Issued Upon QOutstanding Compensation Plans
Exercise of Options, (Excluding
Outstanding Options, Warrants and Securities Reflected
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights in Column (a))
(2) (b) ©)(2)

Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders ............... 2,718,220 $8.59 2,319,000
Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders(1) . ... — — —
Total ... .o 2,718,220 $8.59 2,319,000

|

(1) Our equity compensation program does not include any equity compensation plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which common stock is authorized for issuance that were adopted
without the approval of shareholders.

(2) Of the shares remaining for issuance under our equity compensation plans, no more than 200,000 shares
may be issued as restricted stock or other stock based awards (which awards are valued in whole or in
part on the value of the shares of common stock under each plan).

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data for the five-year period ended December 31, are derived from our audited
financial statements. You should read the information below together with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and
notes thereto included in this Annual Report.

The Consclidated Financial Statements for 1998 through 2001 were audited by Arthur Andersen LLP
(Andersen), which has ceased operations. A copy of the auditor’s report previously issued by Andersen on our
financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001 is included elsewhere in this report. Andersen did not reissue its report.
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INCOME STATEMENT DATA:
Contract revenues . .......oovviven ..
Cost of contract revenues. ..................

Grossprofit ........ ... .. i
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . .
Impairment of property and equipment .......

Operating income (loss) .................
Other:

Interest expense, net of amount capitalized . .

Interest income .........................

Gain (loss) on sale of assets ..............

Other income (expense), net..............

Net income (loss) before income taxes,
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change.......................

Income tax provision (benefit) ..............

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss, net of taxes of $(306) .....
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of

taxesof $743 .. ...

Net income (loss) ........................

Earnings per share — basic:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss . .......... ... ... .. ...
Cumulative effect of accounting change.......

Net income (loss) —basic .................

Earnings per share — diluted:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of accounting change
Extraordinary loss . .......... ... ... .. ...,
Cumulative effect of accounting change.......

Net income (loss) — diluted................

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities . . ... ...
Net cash used in investing activities..........
Net cash provided by financing activities. . . ...
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA:
Depreciation and amortization...............
Capital expenditures . ......................

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Working capital .............. ...l
Property and equipment, net ................
Total assets ...,
Long-term debt, net of current maturities . . ...
Stockholders’ equity ............. ... . ...,

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands, except per share data)
$283,410  $272,208 $160,532  $89,015  $119,802
253,016 237,175 136,146 72,181 91,961
30,394 35,033 24,386 16,834 27,841
21,845 13,771 9,401 9,043 8,120
9,852 — — — —
(1,303) 21,262 14,985 7,791 19,721
(4,585)  (5,381)  (7,730)  (5,759)  (3,000)
91 403 718 480 187
— (22) 6 10 20
(2,831) (184) (84) 158 17
(8,628) 16,078 7,895 2,680 16,945
(3,079) 4,817 2,502 1,001 4,485
(5,549) 11,261 4,993 1,679 12,460
— (568) — — —
— — 1,381 — —
$ (5,549) §$ 10,693 § 6,374 §$ 1,679 §$ 12460
$ (022) $ 050 $ 027 $ 009 $ 069
— (0.02) — — —
— — 0.07 — —
$ (022) $ 048 $ 034 $ 009 $ 069
$ (022) $ 049 $ 026 $ 009 $ 069
— (0.03) — — —
— — 0.07 — —
$ (022) $ 046 $ 033 $ 009 $ 069
$ 47458 $(43,994) $ 8723 $12,627 § 9,704
(58,723)  (53,223)  (18,178) (23,397)  (78,490)
9,474 95,838 10,581 9,238 75,589
$ 15959 $ 12935 § 9591 $ 7574 § 4,448
57,723 54,828 19,268 24,396 95,725
December 31,
2002 2001
$ 30,385 § 78,055
257,847 221,446
420,533 393,584
90,062 111,414
211,675 185,690
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Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(In thousands, except per share data)

OTHER NON-GAAP FINANCIAL DATA:

EBITDA(L) ..o $ 21,677 $ 33,991 § 24498 $15,533 § 24,206
EBITDA calculation is as follows:
Net income (loss) ............ ... ...... $ (5,549) $ 10,693 $ 6,374 § 1,679 $ 12,460
Extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change................... — 568 (1,381) — —
Income tax provision (benefit) .......... (3,079) 4817 2,902 1,001 4,485
Net interest expense . .................. 4,494 4,978 7,012 5,279 2,813
Depreciation and amortization. . ......... 15,959 12,935 9,591 7,574 4,448
Non-cash impairment of property and
eqUIPMEnt ... e 9,852 — — — —
EBITDA ....... .. $ 21,677 $ 33991 $ 24498 $15,533 § 24,206

()

Horizon calculates EBITDA (earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization) as
net income or loss excluding extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of accounting change, income taxes,
net interest expense, depreciation and amortization, and non-cash impairment. Earnings includes
revenues for services for which non-cash consideration is received (approximately $6.8 million in 2002}.
EBITDA is a supplemental financial measurement we use to evaluate our business. We believe that
EBITDA provides supplemental information about our ability to meet future requirements for debt
service, capital expenditures and working capital. [t is not intended to depict funds available for
reinvestment or other discretionary uses. We believe factors that should be considered by investors in
evaluating EBITDA include, but are not limited to, trends in EBITDA as compared to cash flow from
operations, debt service requirements and capital expenditures. OQur measurement of EBITDA may not
be comparable to EBITDA as calculated by other companies. Further, you should not consider EBITDA
in isolation as an alternative to, or more meaningful than, net income, cash flow provided by (used in)
operations or any other measure of performance determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles as an indicator of our profitability or liquidity.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis together with our consolidated financial statements

and notes thereto included in this Annual Report. The following information contains forward-looking
statements, which are subject to risks and uncertainties. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, actual results may differ from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. See
“Cautionary Statements.”

General

We provide marine construction services to the offshore oil and gas industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico,

Latin America, Southeast Asia and West Africa. Our marine fleet consists of thirteen vessels, twelve of which
are currently operational.

The primary services we provide include:
o installing pipelines;
o providing pipebury, hook-up and commissioning services;

o installing production platforms and other structures;
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o disassembling and salvaging production platforms and other structures; and

o performing pipe spooling services.

The demand for offshore construction services depends largely on the condition of the oil and gas industry
and, in particular, the level of capital expenditures by oil and gas companies for developmental construction.
These expenditures are influenced by:

o the price of oil and gas and industry perception of future prices;

o

the ability of the oil and gas industry to access capital;

o expectations about future demand and prices;

o the cost of exploring for, producing and developing oil and gas reserves;

> sale and expiration dates of offshore leases in the United States and abroad,
e discovery rates of new oil and gas reserves in offshore areas;

o local and international political and economic conditions;

o governmental regulations; and

o the availability and cost of capital.

Historically, oil and gas prices and the level of exploration and development activity have fluctuated
substantially, impacting the demand for pipeline and marine construction services. Factors affecting our
profitability include competition, equipment and labor productivity, contract estimating, weather conditions
and other risks inherent in marine construction. The marine construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico
is highly seasonal as a result of weather conditions with the greatest demand for these services occurring
during the second and third calendar quarters of the year.

Critical Accounting Policies

Cur discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Management must apply significant judgments in this process. Among the factors, but not fully
inclusive of all factors, that may be considered by management in these processes are: the range of accounting
policies permitted by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; management’s under-
standing of our business; expected rates of business and operational change; sensitivity and volatility associated
with the assumptions used in developing estimates; and whether historical trends are expected to be
representative of future trends. Among the most subjective judgments employed in the preparation of these
financial statements are estimates of expected costs to complete construction projects, the collectibility of
contract receivables and claims, the fair value of salvage inventory, the depreciable lives of and future cash
flows to be provided by our equipment, the period and extent of maintenance and repairs for drydocking
activity and certain judgments regarding the nature of income and expenditures for tax purposes. We review
all significant estimates on a recurring basis and record the effect of any necessary adjustments prior to
publication of our financial statements. Adjustments made with respect to the use of estimates often relate to
improved information not previously available. Because of the inherent uncertainties in this process, actual
future results could differ from those expected at the reporting date.

We consider certain accounting policies to be critical policies due to the significant judgments, estimation
processes and uncertainties involved for each in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, We
believe the following represent our critical accounting policies.
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Revenue Recognition

Contract revenues for construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method,
measured by the percentage of costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs at completion for each
contract. This percentage is applied to the estimated revenue at completion to calculate revenues earned to
date. We consider the percentage-of-completion method to be the best available measure of progress on these
contracts. Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from
claims and final contract settlements, may result in revisions to estimated costs and revenues and are
recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted
contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. Revenue also includes amounts earned
upon the completion of salvage services. Revenues from salvage projects include non-cash values assigned to
structures that are received from time to time as partial consideration.

Cost Recognition

Costs of contract revenues include all direct material and labor costs and certain indirect costs, such as
supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation, which are allocated to contracts based on asset utilization. Selling,
general and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Accounts Receivable

We have significant investments in billed and unbilled receivables as of December 31, 2002. We have
historically not experienced any significant losses on receivables, but significant losses could be material to our
financial position and results of operations. At December 31, 2002, we had $14.2 million in contract
receivables and $62.7 million in costs in excess of billings from Pemex, including $57.0 million in claims
related to weather and other delays, totaling $76.9 million. We believe our receivables are realizable; however,
any changes will be recognized in the period in which they are determined.

Property and Equipment

We use the units-of-production method to calculate depreciation on our major barges and vessels to
accurately reflect the wear and tear of normal use. The annual depreciation based on utilization of each vessel
will not be less than 25% of annual straight-line depreciation, and the cumulative depreciation based on
utilization of each vessel will not be less than 50% of cumulative straight-line depreciation. The useful lives of
our major barges and vessels range from 15 years to 18 years. Major additions and improvements to barges,
boats and related equipment are capitalized and depreciated over the useful life of the vessel. Maintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred. When equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost of the
equipment and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in
income.

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of any such asset may not be recoverable. Based on our analysis of the estimated future
cash flows for our long-term assets, we recognized a $9.9 million impairment loss related to the Phoenix
Horizon under SFAS No. 144 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our planned use of the Phoenix
Horizon changed during the fourth quarter of 2002 based on capital requirements and the projected utilization
of our operating fleet to meet current market demands, which we expect to continue for at least the first half of
2003. During the fourth quarter, management determined not to invest in the improvements required to place
the Phoenix Horizon into service due to the availability of other operational assets to address current market
demands. No impairments were recognized for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Other Assets

Dry-dock costs are direct costs associated with scheduled major maintenance on the marine construction
vessels. Costs incurred in connection with dry-dockings are deferred and amortized over the five-year cycle to
the next scheduled dry-docking. On June 29, 2001, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA) issued an exposure draft of a proposed Statement of Position (SOP), “Accounting for Certain
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Costs and Activities Related to Property, Plant, and Equipment.” If adopted, we would be required to expense
regulatory maintenance cost on our vessels as incurred. We incurred and capitalized dry-dock costs of
$5.8 million in 2002, $7.1 million in 2001 and $2.0 million in 2000. As of December 31, 2002, deferred dry-
dock costs totaled $12.9 million. Expensing dry-dock costs would likely result in greater variability of our
quarterly earnings as a substantial portion of our dry-dock activities take place during the first and fourth
quarters.

Inventory

Inventory consists of production platforms and other marine structures received from time to time as
partial consideration from salvage projects performed in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. These structures are held
for resale. In 2002 and 2001, we sold inventory structures for $0.7 million and $0.9 million with related cost of
sales of $0.7 million and $0.6 million, respectively. The inventory is valued at amounts not in excess of the fair
value of services provided. Horizon assesses the net realizable value of its inventory items at each balance
sheet date. Inventory is classified as long-term due to the uncertain timing of the sale of inventory.

Results of Gperations

The discussion below describes our results of operations. Our 2002 results reflect the ongoing competitive
nature of marine construction services in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Our profit margins in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico remained under competitive pressure during 2002 due to reduced industry demand for our services.
Our work in international areas continued to grow in 2002 with the expansion of our operations into Southeast
Asia and West Africa. We believe these international areas will provide opportunities for improved profit
margins compared to current market conditions in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.

Our profit margins were adversely impacted by weather conditions during the fourth quarter of 2002. We
experienced lower margins on vessels operating in the northern U.S. Gulf of Mexico because of downtime due
to unusually adverse weather conditions during the fourth quarter of 2002. The inclement winter weather
conditions in the Northeastern United States affected our profitability related to the pipeline installation and
burial project in Long Island Sound even though that project remains on schedule. We believe our expansion
into Southeast Asia and West Africa will provide a counter-seasonal balance to the effect of adverse winter
weather conditions in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico and Latin America.

During 2002, we completed two projects for Pemex utilizing the Atlantic Horizon, Lone Star Horizon and
Pearl Horizon. We began another project for Pemex in May 2002 which we completed during the first quarter
of 2003. Pemex accounted for 30.6% of consolidated revenues for 2002 compared with 52.2% for 2001 and
36.1% for 2000. Our receivables from Pemex continue to impact our liquidity and operating cash flows. As of
December 31, 2002, we had $76.9 million of Pemex receivables, consisting of contract receivables of
$14.2 million and costs in excess of billings of $62.7 million.

We follow the guidance of AICPA SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and
Certain Production-Type Contracts’ relating to use of the percentage-of-completion method, estimating costs
and claim recognition for construction contracts. Contract revenue reflects the original contract price adjusted
for agreed upon change orders and unapproved claims. We recognize unapproved claims only when the
collection is deemed probable and if the amount can be reasonably estimated for purposes of calculating total
profit or loss on long-term contracts. We record revenue for claims to the extent of costs incurred and include
no profit on claims recorded.

Cumulative revenues recognized from 2000 through 2002 on all Pemex projects in Mexico total
$286.8 million, including $57.0 million of claims made under three Pemex contracts for extra work related to
interferences, interruptions and other delays. Of the $57.0 million of claims, $54.2 million relates to our second
major project for Pemex, EPC 64, which was completed during the fourth quarter of 2002. The remaining
$2.8 million of claims relates to two more recent projects for Pemex. Unapproved claims related to the Pemex
projects arise primarily from client delays and changes in the initial scope of work.
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A summary of the balance of claims remaining in costs in excess of billings related to the Pemex projects
are as follows (in millions):

Claims included in 2001 TEVENUE . ...\ttt it e e e eans $42.8
Claims included in 2002 revenue ............. .. ... ... oo 142
Total ClaImS . . .o oot e 57.0
Claims billed 10 Pemex ... ..o e _(4.0)
Claims included in costs in excess of billings as of December 31, 2002 ........... %é

Subsequent to December 31, 2002, we have collected $8.4 million of contract receivables related to the
Pemex projects.

During November 2002, we engaged a consulting firm in Mexico to assist us in the administration of the
claims to be made against Pemex. After considering the time necessary for the consultants to comply with
Pemex’s requirements and communication with new Pemex management, we believe that it will take longer to
process and collect these claims than previously expected. We now expect to formally submit these claims in
accordance with Pemex’s requirements through the second quarter of 2003, with collections expected by the
end of the third quarter of 2003. The unapproved claims we have included as revenue through December 31,
2002 are expected to be substantially less than the actual claims to be presented to Pemex, and we believe we
will collect more than the claim amounts recorded. However, there is a risk that the unapproved claims we
have recognized as revenue may not be collected in full. Should these unapproved claims become uncollectible
based upon subsequent events, we will recognize a loss in our financial statements at that time. There may be
factors other than the submission, review and approval of our claims which are outside our control that may
impact the ultimate collectibility of these amounts. We have considered factors including changes that have
occurred related to Pemex employees involved in the project, the operating structure of Pemex, and the
political and economic conditions in Mexico in assessing the collectibility of these amounts.

On September 20, 2002, the pipelay barge, Lone Star Horizon, sustained electrical damage due to a fire
while at anchor off Ciudad Del Carmen, Mexico. Repairs to the Lone Star Horizon were completed during the
fourth quarter of 2002 at a cost of $5.0 million. We maintain hull and machinery insurance to cover physical
damage to our vessels. This insurance coverage provides for both a $0.5 million occurrence deductible and a
$1.5 million annual aggregate deductible. During 2002, we recorded this $2.0 million loss as other expense,
and we believe the insurance will cover the cost to repair the damage. As of December 31, 2002, we included
the $3.0 million insurance claim in current assets. We collected an initial reimbursement of $1.2 million in
February 2003.

We completed the construction of a spooling facility at our marine base in Port Arthur, Texas in the first
quarter of 2002. The facility can be used to provide pipe spooling services to other contractors and to our joint
venture with Cal Dive. We successfully completed two spooling projects in 2002 and commenced a third spool
job in December 2002 that was successfully completed in the first quarter of 2003. The joint venture, which
has not commenced operations, was formed to charter from Cal Dive the Intrepid, a 374-foot dynamically
positioned multi-service vessel, with reel pipelaying equipment. Operations of the joint venture would be
jointly managed and staffed. If both Cal Dive and Horizon decide to commence joint venture operations, we
would be required to contribute approximately $8 million for the design, construction and installation of reel
pipelaying equipment on the Intrepid that was completed in 2002. Based on current market conditions, we do
not know when, or if, the joint venture will become operational.

The Brazos Horizon arrived in Nigerian waters in October 2002, and began work on a major portion of
Chevron Nigeria Ltd.’s Escravos Cffshore Pipeline and Structural Installation two year program in February
2003. During 2002, we successfully completed several structural projects in Indonesian waters. We completed
a subcontract in 2002 for the installation and burial of a 20-inch pipeline for TotalFinaElf in Indonesia
utilizing the Sea Horizon for all aspects of the installation. We will continue to pursue international
construction projects in Mexico, Latin America, Southeast Asia and West Africa.
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We mobilized the Gulf Horizon to begin construction of a pipeline installation and burial project in Long
Island Sound, New York in May 2002, We were awarded the contract to install 35 miles of 24-inch diameter
pipe to transport natural gas from Northport, Long Island to Hunts Point, New York via the Long Island
Sound and East River. Preparations for the project included extensive environmental training of personnel.
The Gulf Horizon was upgraded for inclement weather conditions and for the addition of automatic welding
equipment. This pipeline installation also included the design, fabrication and use of a 110-ton plow to bury
the 24-inch pipeline below the seabed and riverbed. Construction activities commenced in November 2002,
and we expect to substantially complete the project during the second quarter of 2003.

As of March 7, 2003, our backlog totaled approximately $100.0 million compared to our backlog at
December 31, 2002 and 2001 of approximately $123.6 million and $63.0 million, respectively. This change is
attributable to work performed during that period.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compavred to the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Results of Operations

Contract Revenues

Contract revenues were $283.4 million for 2002, compared to $272.2 million for 2001. Revenues
increased 4.1% compared with last year. Cur projects in Mexico contributed approximately $86.7 million in
revenues during 2002, compared with $142.2 million during 2001. The decline in revenues from the projects in
Mexico was offset by revenues of $55.9 million from the pipeline installation and burial project in Long Island
Sound and by revenues from other international projects. Revenues recognized in 2002 and 2001 included
$43.4 million and $23.3 million, respectively, from salvage and installation projects in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico. Of the $43.4 million in revenues recognized in 2002, approximately $6.8 million represents values
assigned to structures received as partial consideration for salvage projects performed. No significant non-cash
consideration was received in 2001.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $30.4 million (10.7% of contract revenues) for 2002 compared with gross profit of
$35.0 million (12.9% of contract revenues) for 2001. Excluding the effect of the claims on the Pemex projects
for which revenues were recognized to the extent of actual costs incurred, gross profit as a percentage of
revenues was 11.3% for 2002 compared with 15.3% for 2001. The decline was due to lower margins bid on jobs
as a result of competitive market conditions. In addition, unusually adverse weather conditions during the
fourth quarter of 2002, and resulting downtime and revenues recorded for such events, lowered the overall
profit margin.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $21.8 million (7.7% of contract revenues) for 2002,
compared with $13.8 million (5.1% of contract revenues) for 2001. The increase was primarily due to our
international expansion and costs associated with our Pemex claims.

Impaivment of Property and Equipment

We recognized a $9.9 million impairment loss related to the Phoenix Horizon under SFAS No. 144 for
the year ended December 31, 2002. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we determined that we would not invest
in the improvements required to place the barge into service under the current market conditions. The
impairment loss was based upon the cost of the Phoenix Horizon in excess of its estimated fair value based
upon estimated discounted future cash flows. No impairments were recognized for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2001.
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Interest Expense

\

Interest expense for 2002 was $4.6 million, net of $1.6 million of capitalized interest. Interest expense for
2001 was $5.4 million, net of $1.3 million of capitalized interest. Total outstanding debt was $98.3 million at
December 31, 2002 compared with $119.1 million at December 31, 2001. The decrease in interest expense
was due to lower average interest rates, lower average outstanding debt balances as a result of the April 2002
equity offering and an increase in interest capitalization in 2002 related to our increased capital spending.

Interest Income

Interest income includes interest from cash investments for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
of $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to lower interest rates and lower
average cash balances for 2002.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Included in other income (expense) for 2002 is a $2.0 million loss related to a fire on the Lone Star
Horizon, $0.8 million of foreign currency loss due to activity denominated in Mexican pesos and a decline of
the Mexican peso compared to the U.S. dollar, and approximately $31,000 of miscellaneous expense.

Included in other income (expense) for the year ended December 31, 2001 is $(164,000) of other net
expenses associated with foreign currency transaction losses and $(10,000) of net expenses related to our Cal
Dive joint venture. We recognized $(39,000) of equity losses related to the DSND joint venture and $29,000
of revenue earned from billings to the DSND joint venture for administrative services in 2001. The DSND
joint venture was dissolved in February 2001.

Income Taxes {Benefit)

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. We recorded a federal income tax benefit of
$(3.1) million, at a net effective rate of 35.7% on a pre-tax loss of $(8.6) million for 2002. We recorded a
federal income tax provision of $4.8 million, at a net effective rate of 30.0% on a pre-tax income before
extraordinary loss of $16.1 million for 2001. The difference from the statutory rate is due to the application of
the extraterritorial income exclusion for income earned primarily in Mexico and parts of Southeast Asia. The
exclusion allows us to exclude a qualifying portion of income earned outside the United States for tax
purposes. The impact of this exclusion on future periods will vary depending upon the amount of qualifying
income earned outside the United States and changes in tax rules.

Extraordinary Loss

In March of 2001, we recorded an extraordinary loss of $(0.6) million, or $(0.03) per share-diluted, net
of taxes of $(0.3) million related to a penalty on the early extinguishment of debt. See Note 2 of our notes to
consolidated financial statements. We had no such event in 2002.

Net Income (Loss)
Net loss was $(5.5) million, or $(0.22) per share-diluted, for 2002, compared to net income for 2001 of

$10.7 million, or $0.46 per share-diluted, which includes the effect of an extraordinary loss of $(0.6) million,
or $(0.03) per share-diluted, related to the early extinguishment of debt.
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Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2000
Results Of Operations
Contract Revenues

Contract revenues were $272.2 million for 2001 compared with $160.5 million for 2000. Our revenues for
2001 increased 69.6% compared with the same period last year, primarily due to our ongoing projects offshore
Mexico. Our two projects in Mexico contributed approximately $142.2 million in revenues during 2001, as
compared to $57.9 million in 2000. Revenues recognized in 2001 and 2000, included $23.3 million and
$55.4 million, respectively, from salvage and installation projects in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. No significant
non-cash consideration was received in 2001 and 2000.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $35.0 million (12.9% of contract revenues) for 2001 compared with gross profit of
$24.4 million (15.2% of contract revenues) for 2000. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues decreased due to
lower margins previously bid on jobs as a result of the competitive market conditions in the U.S. Gulf of
Mexico. In addition, weather and other delay related claims on the Pemex projects, for which revenues
recognized of $42.8 million in 2001 approximate the actual costs incurred, lowered the overall profit margin.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $13.8 million (5.1% of contract revenues) for 2001
compared with $9.4 million (5.9% of contract revenues) for 2000. The increase is due to additional expenses
associated with our international expansion. The percentage decrease was primarily due to the increase in
revenues with a lower corresponding increase in selling, general and administrative expenses in 2001.

Intevest Expense

Interest expense for 2001 was $5.4 million, net of $1.3 million of capitalized interest. Interest expense for
2000 was $7.7 million, net of $0.3 million of capitalized interest. The decrease in interest expense was due to
both lower average interest rates and lower average outstanding balances on our debt.

Interest Income

Interest income includes interest from cash investments for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
of $0.4 million and $0.7 million, respectively. The decrease was primarily due to lower interest rates and lower
average cash balances for 2001.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Included in other income (expense) for the year ended December 31, 2001 is $(164,000) of other net
expenses associated with foreign currency transaction losses and $(10,000) of net expenses related to our Cal
Dive joint venture. We recognized $(39,000) of equity losses related to the DSND joint venture and $29,000
of revenue earned from billings to the DSND joint venture for administrative services in 2001. The DSND
joint venture was dissolved in February 2001. Other income (expense) for the year ended December 31, 2000
consisted of equity losses of $(221,000) related to the DSND joint venture, $122,000 of revenue earned from
billings to the DSND joint venture for administrative services and $15,000 of miscellaneous income.

Income Taxes

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. We recorded a federal income tax provision
of $4.8 million, at a net effective rate of 30.0% on a pre-tax income of $16.1 million for 2001, excluding
$(0.3) million of deferred tax benefit attributable to the extraordinary loss. We recorded a federal income tax
provision of $2.9 million, at a net effective rate of 36.8% on a pre-tax income of $7.9 million for 2000,
excluding $0.7 million of deferred tax provisions attributable to the accounting change in 2000. The decrease
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in our effective tax rate is due to the effect of the application of the extraterritorial income exclusion in 2001
for income earned primarily in Mexico from October 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001. The exclusion allows us
to exclude a qualifying portion of income earned outside the United States for tax purposes. The impact of this
exclusion on future periods will vary depending upon the amount of qualifying income earned outside the
United States and changes in tax rules.

Extracrdinary Loss

In March of 2001, we recorded an extraordinary loss of $(0.6) million, or $(0.03) per share-diluted, net
of taxes of $(0.3) million related to a penalty on the early extinguishment of debt. See Note 2 of our notes to
consolidated financial statements.

Net Income

Net income was $10.7 million, or $0.46 per share-diluted, for 2001, which includes the effect of an
extraordinary loss of $(0.6) million, or $(0.03) per share-diluted, related to the early extinguishment of debt.
Net income for 2000 was $6.4 million, or $0.33 per share-diluted, which includes the effect of a cumulative
adjustment of $1.4 million, or $0.07 per share, related to a change in accounting principle.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

In April 2002, we sold 3,000,000 shares of common stock in a public offering. We received $30.8 million
after deducting the underwriting discount and expenses. We used $20.0 million to reduce indebtedness under
our revolving credit facilities and the remainder was used for general corporate purposes.

Our primary liquidity needs are to provide working capital to support our projects and other operations
and to fund acquisitions and improvements to the fleet necessary to expand operations. We had $30.4 million
of working capital at December 31, 2002, compared to $78.1 million of working capital at December 31, 2001.
The decrease in working capital was attributable to an increase in accounts payable and the use of funds for
capital expenditures and to reduce of our long-term debt.

QOur receivables from Pemex continue to impact our liquidity and operating cash flows. As of
December 31, 2002, we had contract receivables of $14.2 million and costs in excess of billings of
$62.7 million from Pemex totaling $76.9 million. The significant delays between the completion of the work
and when it is billed and collected are caused by Pemex’s rigid requirements on the submission, review and
approval of invoices and documentation prior to their payment of contract claims and change orders. As of
December 31, 2002, there were $57.0 million of claims made under three Pemex contracts for extra work
related to interferences, interruptions and other delays.

Of the $57.0 million of claims, $54.2 million of claims relate to our most significant contract with Pemex,
the EPC 64 contract in the Cantarell field. Pemex extended the EPC 64 contract, which had an original value
of $41.0 million, in scope to $194.4 million of total revenue recognized. This extension substantially increased
the period of our operations in the Cantarell field, and as a result, this project was subject to greater
interruptions due to weather conditions and standby time as other contractors completed their work. The
claims on the EPC 64 contract could not be submitted in accordance w1th Pemex requirements until all work
was completed in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Cash provided by operations was $47.5 million for 2002 compared to $44.0 million of cash used in
operations for 2001. During 2002, costs in excess of billings decreased $17.9 million compared to an increase
of $78.8 million in 2001 that related principally to contracts with Pemex. The decrease in 2002 was based upon
billing and subsequent collection of accounts receivable related to Pemex, the project in Long Island Sound
and the Amistad Development project in Golfo de Guayaquil, Ecuador. Additionally, cash flows from
operating activities included increases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of approximately $26.3 mil-
lion in 2002 and $38.5 million in 2001 related to extensions in the timing of payments by us.

At December 31, 2002, we had approximately $98.3 million of total outstanding debt. This represents an
approximate net decrease of $20.8 million from December 31, 2001 primarily due to the use of $20.0 million
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in equity offering proceeds to pay down our loans. Of the $98.3 million of outstanding debt, $30.9 million
represents borrowings on our three revolving credit facilities and $67.4 million represents borrowings on seven
term-debt facilities. At December 31, 2002, we had $31.4 million available under our three revolving credit
facilities. At March 15, 2003, we had $15.1 million available under our three revolving credit facilities. Interest
rates vary from Libor plus 2.5% to Prime plus 0.5%. Our weighted average interest rate was 4.21% at
December 31, 2002, and our term-debt borrowings currently require $680,000 in monthly principal payments.

Our loans require that certain conditions be met in order for us to obtain advances. Our loans are
collateralized by mortgages on our vessels and accounts receivable. Advances under our revolving credit
facilities may be obtained in accordance with a borrowing base defined as a percentage of accounts receivable
balances and costs in excess of billings. The loans contain customary defaults and some require us to maintain
certain financial ratios. The loan agreements also contain certain covenants that limit our ability to incur
additional debt, pay dividends, create certain liens, sell assets and make capital expenditures.

In September and December 2002, we amended one of our revolving credit facilities to increase the
financial ratio related to our financial leverage of debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization) for periods ending on or before June 30, 2003. We have experienced a reduction in
our EBITDA primarily due to reduced demand, lower margins on projects and the $2.0 million loss related to
the Lone Star Horizon in the third quarter of 2002. We were in compliance with all of our amended debt
covenants at December 31, 2002.

We also incurred debt to fund our working capital requirements in Mexico due to the timing of
collections related to our Pemex claims. We may need to berrow additional funds to meet working capital
requirements for 2003 contingent upon the timing and magnitude of collection of our Pemex receivables and
claims. If we are required to make additional borrowings in excess of our current debt facilities, we will be
required to amend financial covenants under our revolving credit facilities. Although we can provide no
assurance, we believe that we will be able to borrow additional funds secured by mortgages on our vessels and
amend financial covenants as required.

We have fixed debt service and lease payment obligations under notes payable and operating leases for
which we have material contractual cash obligations. Interest rates on our debt vary from Libor plus 2.5% to
prime plus 0.5%. The following table summarizes our long-term material contractual cash obligations (in
millions):

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Principal and interest payments on debt .. $12,467  $42,170  $25,300 $15,063  $3,363  $11,509
Operating leases ...................... 2,684 2,510 2,504 2,341 2,347 2,489

$15,151  $44,680 $27,804 $17,404 $5710  $13,998

Current maturities of long-term debt were $8.3 million as of December 31, 2002. Planned capital
expenditures for 2003 are estimated to range from approximately $20.0 million to $24.0 million largely related
to vessel improvements. Cur strategy, however, is to make other acquisitions, to expand our operating
capabilities and expand into additional selected international areas. To the extent we are successful in
identifying acquisition and expansion opportunities and have expanded our market share in those areas, we
may require additional equity or debt financing depending on the size of any transaction.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our market risk exposures primarily include interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation on financial
instruments as detailed below. Our market risk sensitive instruments are classified as “other than trading.”
The following sections address the significant market risks associated with our financial activities during 2002.
Qur exposure to market risk as discussed below includes “forward-looking statements” and represents
estimates of possible changes in fair values and future earnings or cash flows that would occur assuming
hypothetical future movements in foreign currency exchange rates or interest rates.

As of December 31, 2002 the carrying value of our debt, including $0.1 million of accrued interest, was
approximately $98.4 million. The fair value of this debt approximates the carrying value because the interest
rates are based on floating rates identified by reference to market rates. A hypothetical 1% increase in the
applicable interest rates as of December 31, 2002 would increase annual interest expense by approximately
$1.0 million.

In Mexico, we collect a portion of our revenues and pay local expenses in foreign currency. We manage
foreign currency risk by attempting to contract as much foreign revenue as possible in U.S. dollars.
Approximately 80% of our current contracts with Pemex is denominated in U.S. dollars. We receive payment
in Mexican pesos equivalent to the U.S. dollars billed, which is converted to U.S. dollars that day or the
following day. Our contracts in Mexico also typically provide some protection from declining exchange rates
on the portion of the contract revenues denominated in foreign currency. We recognized a $0.8 million foreign
currency loss due to activity denominated in Mexican pesos and a decline of the Mexican peso compared to
the U.S. dollar for 2002. We monitor the exchange rate of our foreign currencies in order to mitigate the risk
from foreign currency fluctuations. Additional exposure could occur as we expand internationally.

The level of construction services required by a customer depends on the size of their capital expenditure
budget for construction for the year. Consequently, customers that account for a significant portion of contract
revenues in one year may represent an immaterial portion of contract revenues in subsequent years.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and supplementary data appear on pages 30 through 53 in this
report and are incorporated herein by reference. See Index to consolidated financial statements on page 28.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On June 14, 2002, upon the recommendation of the audit committee of our board of directors, the board
of directors dismissed Arthur Andersen LLP (Andersen) as our independent public accountants. We selected
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as our new independent accountants. The decision to select PwC was
recommended by the audit committee and approved by the board of directors. During the two fiscal years
ended December 31, 2001 and the subsequent interim period preceding such selection, neither we nor anyone
on our behalf consulted PwC regarding either (1) the application of accounting principles to a specified
transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on our financial
statements, nor did PwC provide to us a written report or oral advice regarding such principles or audit
opinion; or (2) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement or a reportable event,

None of Andersen’s reports on our consolidated financial statements for the past two fiscal years
contained an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was any such report qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During each of our two most recent fiscal years and through the date of this report there were: (i} no
disagreements with Andersen on any matter of accounting principle practice, financial statement disclosure, or
auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements, if not resolved to Andersen’s satisfaction, would have
caused them to make reference to the subject matter in connection with their report on our consolidated
financial statements for such years; and (ii) no reportable events as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of
Regulation S-K.
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PART I

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information concerning our directors and executive officers called for by this item will be included in our
definitive Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the 2003 annual meeting of stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference. For additional information regarding executive officers, see “Executive
Officers of the Registrant” of this Annual Report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information concerning the compensation of the executive officers called for by this item will be included
in our definitive Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the 2003 annual meeting of stockholders and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management called for by
this item will be included in our definitive Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the 2003 annual
meeting of stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions called for by this item will be
included in our definitive Proxy Statement prepared in connection with the 2003 annual meeting of
stockholders and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Within the 90-day period prior to the filing of this Annual Report, an evaluation was performed under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rule 13a-14(c) of the rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the design
and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There have been no significant
changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to
the date of their evaluation.

28




PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report:

1. Financial Statements

Reports of Independent ACCOUNTANTS. . .. .ottt ettt e e 30
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 . ...................... 32
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000 . L 33
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2002,

2001 and 2000 . ... 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000 . . e 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............ ... i, 36

2. Financial Statement Schedules — None

Schedules have not been included because they are not applicable, immaterial or the
information required has been included in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
(a) Exhibits

See Index to Exhibits on page 57. We will furnish to any eligible stockholder, upon written
request, a copy of any exhibit listed upon payment of a reasonable fee equal to our expenses in
furnishing such exhibit.

{b) Reports on Form 8-K

On October 9, 2002, we filed a report on Form 8-K, reporting under Item 7, announcing the award of a
major portion of Chevron Nigeria Ltd.’s Escravos Offshore Pipeline and Structural Installation two year
program.

On October 16, 2002, we filed a report on Form 8-K, reporting under [tem 7, announcing the award of a
contract to our subsidiary, Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., by Williams Qil Gathering, LLC to install
pipeline in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico.

On October 28, 2002, we filed a report on Form 8-X, reporting under Item 7, announcing the award of a
contract to our subsidiary, Horizon Marine Construction, Ltd., by Brunei Shell Petroleum Company Sdn.
Bhd.

On October 30, 2002, we filed a report on Form 8-K, reporting under Item 7, reporting earnings for the
quarter ended September 30, 2002.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Horizon Offshore, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2002 and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Horizon Offshore, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2002 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. The financial statements of Horizon Offshore, Inc. as of December 31, 2001,
and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2001, were audited by other independent
accountants who have ceased operations. Those independent accountants expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements in their report dated February 28, 2002.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Houston, Texas
March 25, 2003
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The following audit opinion is a copy of the opinion issued by Arthur Andersen LLP on February 2§, 2002.
This opinion has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLP. Note that only the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of December 31, 2001 and the Consolidated Statements of Operations, Stockholders’ Equity and Cash
Flows for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 covered by this report below are included in this set of
consolidated financial statements.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of
Horizon Offshore, Inc.,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Horizon Offshore, Inc. (a Delaware
corporation), and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Horizon Offshore, Inc., and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000
and 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2002
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HORIZON OFFSHORE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share da¢a)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents. . ... ... ... .. ... i,
Accounts receivable —
Contract receivables . ........ ... ..
Costs in excess of billings . ....... ... ...
Affiliated parties . ...
Other current assets ... ... ot e

Total current assets .......... ...
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net ....... ...
INVENTORY .. e
OTHER ASSETS L. e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable .. ...
Accrued liabilities. .. ... ...
Accrued Job COStS . ... e
Billings in excess of COStS .. ... it e
Current maturities of long-term debt ......... ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ..
Current taxes payable. . ... .

Total current liabilities . . . ... ... i
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current maturities ..........................
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES. .. ... . i

Total lHabilities ... ...t
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $1 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and
outstanding . .. ... ...

Common stock, $1 par value, 35,000,000 shares authorized, 27,290,582 and
24,244,598 shares issued, respectively ............ ... i

Additional paid-in capital ...... ... . ..
Retained €arnings . . .. ..ot
Treasury stock, 912,207 and 973,505 shares, respectively .................

Total stockholders’ equity . ....... ...t
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December 31,

December 31,

2002 2001
$ 6,073 $ 7,864
52,362 52,431
78,494 96,433
170 94
3,010 4,923
140,109 161,745
257,847 221,446
7,816 1,705
14,761 8,688
$420,533 $393,584
$ 34,930 $ 11,498
10,641 12,852
54,866 49,799
602 1,860
8,262 7,681
423 —
109,724 83,690
90,062 111,414
9,072 12,790
208,858 207,894
16,583 13,537
182,722 154,636
18,353 23,902
(5,983) (6,385)
211,675 185,690
$420,533 $393,584

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



HORIZON OFFSHORE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except share data)

CONTRACT REVENUES .. ... i
COST OF CONTRACT REVENUES .............................

GTOSS PrOfit ... oot
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES .....
IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT ..............

Operating income (loSS) . ... ... o
OTHER:
Interest expense, net of amount capitalized ....................
Interest INCOME. . . ... . i i i e
Gain (loss) onsaleof assets...... ... ... i it
Other income (expense), Net ... ...t eeneannn.,
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES,
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS AND CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF
ACCOUNTING CHANGE ... . e
INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT) .........................
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY LOSS AND
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE .........
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS, NET OF TAXES OF $(306) ...........
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE, NET OF
TAXES OF $743 e

NET INCOME (LOSS) ... ...

EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change ........ ... ... i e

Extraordinary loss. ....... .. ...
Cumulative effect of accounting change .........................

Net income (loss) —BASIC ... .. .. .. i i,

EARNINGS PER SHARE — DILUTED:

Net income (loss) before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of
accounting change .......... ..ot

Extraordinary 10SS. . ... oot
Cumulative effect of accounting change .........................

Net income (loss) — DILUTED............... ... . ...,
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES USED IN COMPUTING
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
BASIC
DILUTED .

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
283,410 $ 272208 § 160,532
253,016 237,175 136,146
30,394 35,033 24,386
21,845 13,771 9,401
9,852 — —
(1,303) 21,262 14,985
(4,585) (5,381) (7,730)
91 403 718
— (22) 6
(2,831) (184) (84)
(8,628) 16,078 7,895
(3,079) 4817 2,902
(5,549) 11,261 4,993
— (568) —
— — 1,381
(5549) $ 10693 § 6374
(022) $ 050 $ 0.27
- (0.02) —
— _ 0.07
0.22) $ 048 $ 0.34
022) $ 049 $ 0.26
— (0.03) —
— — 0.07
022) $ 046 $ 0.33
25,573,326 22,430,894 18,823,610
25,573,326 23,085,975 19,455,470

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HORIZON OFFSHORE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BALANCE, December 31, 1999 .......

Stock options exercised .............
401 (k) contributions in company stock

Net income before cumulative effect
of accounting change .............

Cumulative effect of accounting
change, net of taxes of $743 ... .. ..

BALANCE, December 31, 2000.......

Issuance of common stock, net of
offering costs. .. ....... ... .. ...

Issuance of common stock to purchase
assets ... .. i

Stock options exercised .............
401 (k) contributions in company stock
Netincome .......................

BALANCE, December 31, 2001 .......

Issuance of common stock, net of
offering costs . ............. ... ...

Stock options exercised .............
401 (k) contributions in company stock
Net (1oSS) ..o vvvevi i

BALANCE, December 31, 2002 .......

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(In thousands)

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in Retained ~ __ Lreasury Stock  geockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Equity
19,826 $ 9,119 $ 87,872 $ 6,835 1,025 $(6,726) $ 97,100
43 43 271 — — — 314
— — 102 — (22) 145 247
— — — 4,993 — — 4,993
— — — 1,381 — — 1,381
19,869 9,162 88,245 13,209 1,003 (6,581) 104,035
3,800 3,800 62,219 — — — 66,019
250 250 1,355 — — — 1,605
325 325 2,682 — — — 3,007
— — 135 — (29) 196 33
— — — 10,693 — — 10,693
24,244 13,537 154,636 23,902 974 (6,385) 185,690
3,000 3,000 27,844 — — — 30,844
46 46 238 — — — 284
— — 4 — (62) 402 406
— — — _(5,549) — — (5,549)
27,290  $16,583  $182,722  $18,353 912  $(5,983) $211,675
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HORIZON OFFSHORE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
CASH FLOWS FROM COPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (10SS) .. ..ottt e $ (5549) $ 10,693 $ 6,374
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities —
Depreciation and amortization. .............. ... ... ... 15,959 12,935 9,591
Cumulative effect of accounting change...................... — — (2,124)
Impairment of property and equipment ...................... 9,852 — —
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ...................... (3,718) 4,511 3,645
Gain (loss) onsaleof assets . .......... ... ... ... — 22 (6)
Expense recognized for issuance of treasury stock for 401 (k)
plan contributions .......... ... .. .. . ..., 406 331 247
Changes in operating assets and liabilities —
Accounts receivable ......... ... ... i (7)  (25,215) (7,549)
Costs in excess of billings . ........... ... ... ... ... ....... 17,939 (78,822)  (13,439)
Billings in excess of COStS. . ... ...t (1,258) 1,310 (321)
Inventory ... .o (6,111) 242 (247)
Other assets . ... ... (6,766) (8,521) (2,572)
Accounts payable ........ ... e 23,432 3,306 3,945
Accrued liabilities .. ... ... .. (2,211) 7,899 2,027
Accrued Job COStS . ... 5,067 27,315 9,152
Current taxes payable . ....... ... ... ... 423 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities........ 47,458 (43,994) 8,723
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases and additions to property, equipment and intangibles. . . . (58,723)  (53,223)  (18,178)
Net cash used in investing activities. . ................... (58,723)  (53,223) (18,178)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under termdebt ......... ... . ... o 4,045 32,596 8,088
Principal payments on term debt .......... .. ... ... ... (8,040)  (38,733)  (10,937)
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . ....................... 131,424 86,800 60,800
Payments on revolving credit facilities ......................... (148,200)  (52,500)  (47,400)
Loan fees .. ... (883) (1,351) (284)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net .................. 30,844 66,019 —
Stock option transactions and other ........................... 284 3,007 314
Net cash provided by financing activities................. 9,474 95,838 10,581
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ... e e (1,791) (1,379) 1,126
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR 7,864 9,243 8,117
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR....... $§ 6073 § 7864 $§ 97243
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES:
Cash paid forinterest . ...t $ 5449 § 6,788 § 6,753
Cash paid for income taxes ............ ... ..., $ 216§ — 3 —
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases and additions to equipment with the issuance of common
STOCK « oo $ — § 1,605 $ —
Purchases and additions to equipment with the issuance of notes
payable . ... .. $ — 3 — § 1,09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HORIZON OFFSHORE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2002

I. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Horizon Offshore, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and its subsidiaries (Horizon), provides marine
construction services for the offshore oil and gas industry. These services generally consist of laying and
burying marine pipelines for the transportation of oil and gas, and installing and salvaging production
platforms and other marine structures. Work is performed primarily on a fixed-price or day-rate basis or a
combination thereof.

Business Risks

Our level of activity depends largely on the condition of the oil and gas industry and, in particular, the
level of capital expenditures by oil and gas companies for developmental construction. These expenditures are
influenced by prevailing oil and gas prices, expectations about future demand and prices, the cost of exploring
for, producing and developing oil and gas reserves, the discovery rates of new oil and gas reserves, sale and
expiration dates of offshore leases in the United States and abroad, political and economic conditions,
governmental regulations and the availability and cost of capital. Historically, oil and gas prices and the level
of exploration and development activity have fluctuated substantially, impacting the demand for pipeline and
marine construction services.

A prolonged weakness in energy prices or a prolonged period of lower levels of offshore drilling and
exploration could adversely affect our future revenues, profitability and liquidity. Our 2002 results reflect the
competitive nature and low demand for marine construction services in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. Profit
margins in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico have decreased during 2002 due to the reduced level of capital
expenditures by oil and gas companies for developmental construction and the general slow down of the U.S.
and other economies in the region.

Factors affecting our profitability include competition, equipment and labor productivity, contract
estimating, weather conditions and the other risks inherent in marine construction. The marine construction
industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico is highly seasonal as a result of weather conditions, with the greatest
demand for these services occurring during the second and third quarters of the year. Full year results are not a
direct multiple of any quarter or combination of quarters because of this seasonality.

We have domestic and international operations in one industry segment, the marine construction service
industry to offshore oil and gas companies. Our customers in the U.S. have primarily been the oil and gas
companies operating on the U.S. outer continental shelf. In 2002, we provided offshore marine construction
services to approximately 41 customers. Our single largest customer during the last three years was Pemex.
We completed one major project for a subsidiary of Pemex in 2001 and completed two major projects for
Pemex in 2002, and we completed another project during the first quarter of 2003. Pemex accounted for 30.6%
of our revenues for the year 2002 compared to 52.2% of revenues for 2001 and 36.1% of revenues for 2000. Our
receivables from Pemex continue to impact our liquidity and operating cash flows. As of December 31, 2002,
we have recognized contract receivables of $14.2 million and costs in excess of billings of $62.7 million from
Pemex totaling $76.9 million.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Horizon and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management must apply
significant judgments in this process. Among the factors, but not fully inclusive of all factors, that may be
considered by management in these processes are: the range of accounting policies permitted by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States; management’s understanding of our business; expected
rates of business and operational change; sensitivity and volatility associated with the assumptions used in
developing estimates; and whether historical trends are expected to be representative of future trends. Among
the most subjective judgments employed in the preparation of these financial statements are estimates of
expected costs to complete construction projects, the collectibility of contract receivables and claims, the fair
value of salvage inventory, the depreciable lives of and future cash flows to be provided by our equipment, the
period and extent of maintenance and repairs for dry-docking activity and certain judgments regarding the
nature of income and expenditures for tax purposes. We review all significant estimates on a recurring basis
and record the effect of any necessary adjustments prior to publication of our financial statements.
Adjustments made with respect to the use of estimates often relate to improved information not previously
available. Because of the inherent uncertainties in this process, actual future results could differ from those
expected at the reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

Construction contract revenues are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method, measured by the
percentage of costs incurred to date to the total estimated costs for each construction contract. We consider
the percentage-of-completion method to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. We
follow the guidance of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position
(SOP) 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts,”
for our accounting policy relating to use of the percentage-of-completion method, estimating costs and claim
recognition for construction contracts. Contract revenue reflects the original contract price adjusted for agreed
upon change orders and unapproved claims. We recognize unapproved claims only when the collection is
deemed probable and if the amount can be reasonably estimated for purposes of calculating total profit or loss
on long-term contracts. We record revenue and the unbilled receivable for claims to the extent of costs
incurred and include no profit on claims recorded. Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated
profitability, including those arising from final contract settlements, may result in revisions to costs and
revenues and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for estimated
losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined. The asset “Costs
in excess of billings” represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed as determined on an
individual contract basis. The liability “Billings in excess of costs” represents amounts billed in excess of
revenues recognized as determined on an individual contract basis.

For service contracts, revenues are recognized under Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,” when all of the following criteria are met; persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists; delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; the seller’s price is
fixed or determinable; and collectability is reasonably assured.

Cost Recognition

Cost of contract revenues includes all direct material and labor costs and certain indirect costs, which are
allocated to contracts based on utilization, such as supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation. Selling, general
and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred.
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Interest Capitalization

Interest is capitalized on the average amount of accumulated expenditures for equipment that is
undergoing major modifications and refurbishment prior to being placed into service. Interest is capitalized
using an effective rate based on related debt until the equipment is placed into service. Interest expense for
2002 was net of $1.6 million of capitalized interest compared with $1.3 million in 2001 and $0.3 million in
2000. Net interest expense was $4.6 million, $5.4 million and $7.7 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all cash in banks and highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months
or less to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventory consists of production platforms and other marine structures received from time to time as
partial consideration from salvage projects performed in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico. During 2002, revenue of
$6.8 million was recognized representing the non-cash values assigned to the structures received as partial
consideration for performing salvage projects. No significant non-cash consideration was received during 2001
and 2000. These structures are held for resale. The inventory is valued at amounts not in excess of the fair
value of services provided. Horizon assesses the net realizable value of its inventory items at each balance
sheet date. Inventory is classified as long-term due to the uncertain timing of the sale of inventory.

Property and Equipment

We use the units-of-production method to calculate depreciation on our major barges, vessels and related
equipment to accurately reflect the wear and tear of normal use. The useful lives of our major barges and
vessels range from 15 years to 18 years. Major additions and improvements to barges, boats and related
equipment are capitalized and depreciated over the useful life of the vessel. Maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. When equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost of the equipment and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in income.

Depreciation on our other fixed assets is provided vsing the straight-line method based on the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings .. ..ot 15 years
Machinery and equipment . .. ... ..o e 8-10 years
Office furniture and eqUIpmMeEnt .. ... ... ot 5 years
Leasehold improvements . ... ... oottt i e 3-10 years

On January 1, 2000, we changed depreciation methods from the straight-line method to the units-of-
production method on our major barges and vessels to more accurately reflect the wear and tear of normal use.
We believe that the units-of-production method is best suited to reflect the actual deterioration of our marine
equipment. Depreciation expense calculated under the units-of-production method may be different than
depreciation expense calculated under the straight-line method in any period. The annual depreciation based
on utilization of each vessel will not be less than 25% of annual straight-line depreciation, and the cumulative
depreciation based on utilization of each vessel will not be less than 50% of cumulative straight-line
depreciation. For the year ended December 31, 2000, we recorded the cumulative effect of a $1.4 million
adjustment, or $0.07 per share, which is net of taxes of $0.7 million, related to changing depreciation methods
from the straight-line method to the units-of-production method.

As of December 31, 2002, fixed assets totaling $17.5 million, excluding land, are not being depreciated as
some of these assets are under construction and others have not been placed into service.

We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of any such asset may not be recoverable. Based on our analysis of the discounted future
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cash flows for our long-term assets, we recognized a $9.9 million impairment loss related to the Phoenix
Horizon under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144 for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. We believe that the Phoenix Horizon would require improvements and upgrades in order to
place it into service. Cur planned use of the Phoenix Horizon changed during the fourth quarter of 2002 based
on capital requirements and the projected utilization of our operating fleet in the current market conditions,
which we expect to continue for at least the first half of 2003. We determined that we would not invest in the
improvements required to place the barge into service under current conditions. The impairment loss was
based upon the cost of the Phoenix Horizon in excess of its estimated fair value based upon estimated
discounted future cash flows. No impairments were recognized for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000.

Other Assets

Other assets consist principally of deferred dry-dock costs, goodwill, prepaid loan fees and deposits.
Deposits consist of security deposits on office leases as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. Loan fees paid in
connection with the loan facilities are amortized over the term of the loans. See Note 5.

Dry-dock costs are direct costs associated with scheduled major maintenance on the marine construction
vessels. Costs incurred in connection with dry-dockings are deferred and amortized over the five-year cycle to
the next scheduled dry-docking.

In August 2002, Horizon acquired the remaining 51% equity interest in an entity in Mexico for
$1.0 million cash. Horizon previously had a 49% equity interest in this entity and included its accounts in
Horizon’s consolidated financial statements as Horizon exercised effective control over the entity’s operations.
As a result of this acquisition, Horizon will be qualified to bid on and perform projects reserved for national
companies in Mexico without a locally domiciled partner. We recorded $1.0 million of goodwill in connection
with acquiring the equity interest, which is nondeductible for tax purposes. The related goodwill is included in
other long-term assets at December 31, 2002.

Other long-term assets consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001
Deferred dry-dock costs . ... e $12,861  $7,711
Goodwill L. 1,000 —
Prepaid loan fees .. ... i e 562 681
DePOSItS . o ot 293 211
OtheT . 45 85

$14,761  $8,688

Federal Income Taxes

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period enacted.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2002, we had two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more
fully in Note 9. We account for those plans under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related
Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income (loss), as all options
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granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on
the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and earnings per share if we
had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” to stock-based employee compensation.

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Net income (loss), asreported . ............ccoveiiinio.... $(5,549) $10,693 $ 6,374
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

of related tax effects . . ........ ... . (3,128)  (3,594) (3,379)
Pro forma net income (loSS) ... ... ... ... $(8,677) $ 7,099 $ 2,995
Earnings per share:

Basic—asreported ...... ... ... ... $ (0.22) § 048 3§ 0.34

Basic—proforma ........... ... .. .. ... . $ (03¢) § 032 §$ 016

Diluted —asreported. . .......... ... . $ (0.L22) § 046 $ 0.33

Diluted —pro forma............c .. i $ (0.34) § 031 § 0.5

To determine pro forma information as if we had accounted for the employee stock options under the fair
value method as defined by SFAS No. 123, we used the Black-Scholes method and assumed no dividends, as
well as the following additional weighted average assumptions included in the following table.

2002 2001 2000

Option life (in years) ...t 7 10 10
Volatility oot 77.8% 79.07% 56.85%
Risk-free Interest rate . . ... .t 4.77% 5.11% 6.77%

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash, receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value
due to the short term maturity of those instruments.

As of December 31, 2002 the carrying value of our debt, including $0.1 million of accrued interest, was
approximately $98.4 million. The fair value of this debt approximates the carrying value because the interest
rates are based on floating rates identified by reference to market rates. A hypothetical 1% increase in the
applicable interest rates as of December 31, 2002 would have increased annual interest expense by
approximately $1.0 million. ‘

Segment Information and Significant Customers

We have domestic and international operations in one industry segment, the marine construction service
industry for offshore oil and gas companies. We completed one major project for a subsidiary of Pemex in
2001 and completed two major projects for Pemex in 2002, and we completed another project during the first
quarter of 2003. Pemex accounted for 30.6% of our revenues for the year 2002, as compared to 52.2% of
revenues for 2001 and 36.1% of revenues for 2000.

In addition to Pemex, we had one other customer accounting for more than 10% of consolidated revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2002. This domestic customer accounted for 19.7% of consolidated revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2002. There were no other customers accounting for more than 10% of
consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002, 2001 or 2000.

The level of construction services required by a customer depends on the size of their capital expenditure
budget for construction for the year. Consequently, customers that account for a significant portion of contract
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revenues in one year may represent an immaterial portion of contract revenues in subsequent years. Based
upon our interpretation of the requirements of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information,” Horizon has domestic and international operations in one industry segment, the
marine construction service industry for offshore oil and gas companies. Geographic information has been
provided in Note 12 of these consolidated financial statements.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share data for all periods presented has been computed pursuant to SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share,” that requires a presentation of basic eamnings per share (basic EPS) and diluted
earnings per share (diluted EPS). Basic EPS excludes dilution and is determined by dividing income available
to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities and other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted into common stock.

Other Comprehensive Loss

We have no items representing other comprehensive losses under SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Compre-
hensive Income.”

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation shown in the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2002. Reclassifications in 2001 and 2000 had no effect
on net income or total stockholders’ equity and relate to the classification of dry-docking expenditures and
borrowings and payments on our revolving credit facilities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. For the
year ended December 31, 2001, cash used in operating activities was increased by $7.1 million and cash used
in investing activities was reduced by $7.1 million. For the year ended December 31, 2000, cash provided by
operating activities was reduced by $2.0 million and cash used in investing activities was reduced by
$2.0 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The new rules apply to goodwill
and intangible assets acquired after June 30, 2001 and to existing goodwill and intangible assets upon adoption
of SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142. The new rules establish one method of accounting for all business
combinations and the resulting goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, intangible assets
with a finite life will generally continue to be amortized over their lives while intangibles without a finite life,
including goodwill, will no longer be amortized. However, tests for impairment will be performed annuaily or
upon the occurrence of a triggering event. We adopted SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002, and there was no
significant impact to our financial statements upon adoption.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” The
provisions of SFAS No. 143 apply to all entities that incur obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and establishes an accounting standard requiring the recording of the fair value of
liabilities associated with the retirement of long-term assets in the period in which the liability is incurred.
SFAS No. 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The
adoption of this standard will not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets.” The FASB’s new rules on asset impairment supersede SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of”’, and was effective for our
fiscal year beginning January 1, 2002. We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any such asset may not be recoverable. We record
impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations when the cash flows estimated to be generated by
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those assets are less than the carrying amount of those items. The net carrying value of assets not fully
recoverable is reduced to fair value. Qur estimate of fair value represents our best estimate based on industry
trends and reference to market transactions and is subject to variability. Based on our analysis of the estimated
discounted future cash flows for our long-term assets, we recognized a $9.9 million impairment loss related to
the Phoenix Horizon under SFAS No. 144 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” which revises ¢urrent guidance with
respect to gains and losses on early extinguishment of debt. Under SFAS No. 145, gains and losses on early
extinguishment of debt will no longer be treated as extraordinary items unless they meet the criteria for
extraordinary treatment in APB Opinion No. 30. Horizon will be required to adopt SFAS No. 145 effective
January 1, 2003. Upon adoption, we will be required to reclassify the extraordinary loss on early extinguish-
ment of debt from the year ended December 31, 2001, as this amount will no longer qualify for extraordinary
treatment under SFAS No. 145,

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.”
FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to
recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing
the guarantee. FIN 45 does not prescribe a specific approach for subsequently measuring the guarantor’s
recognized liability over the term of the related guarantee. It also incorporates, without change, the guidance
in FASB Interpretation No. 34, “Disclosure of Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, which is being
superseded. We will apply the recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. We are currently evaluating the recognition and
measurement provisions of FIN 45 and have not determined the impact this statement will have on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations. The disclosure requirements in this interpretation are
effective beginning with the December 31, 2002 financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensa-
tion and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 does not permit the use of the
original SFAS No. 123 prospective method of transition for changes to the fair value based method made in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003. The adoption of this standard will not have a significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

On June 29, 2001, the AICPA issued an exposure draft of a proposed SOP, “Accounting for Certain
Costs and Activities Related to Property, Plant, and Equipment.” This proposed SOP would change, among
other things, the method by which companies would account for normal, recurring or periodic repairs and
maintenance costs related to “in service” fixed assets. It would require that these types of expenses be
recognized when incurred rather than recognizing expense for these costs while the asset is productive. If
adopted, we would be required to expense regulatory maintenance cost on our vessels as incurred. We
currently capitalize a significant portion of these costs and amortize them over the future periods they are
expected to benefit. We incurred dry-dock costs of $5.8 million in 2002, $7.1 million in 2001 and $2.0 million
in 2000. As of December 31, 2002, deferred dry-dock costs totaled $12.9 million. Expensing dry-dock costs
would likely result in greater variability of our quarterly earnings as a substantial portion of our dry-dock
activities take place during the first and fourth quarters.
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2. Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

In March 2001, we paid $30.0 million to reduce the outstanding principal balance under our term loan,
which was subject to a penalty of $0.9 million ($0.6 million net of taxes of $0.3 million), or $0.03 per share-
diluted, for the early extinguishment of debt. The penalty was recorded as an extraordinary loss in 2001. Upon
adoption of SFAS No. 145, we will be required to reclassify the extraordinary loss to other expense for the year
ended December 31, 2001.

3. Contract Receivables

Contract receivables are generally billed upon the completion of small contracts and are progress billed
on larger contracts in accordance with contract terms and milestones. Costs in excess of billings solely
represent costs incurred and estimated earnings on jobs in progress.

Contract receivables billed consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001
Completed CONtracts . ... ..ottt e $15,808  $23,047
CONracts iN PrOZTESS « . v o vttt et et et e et et et e e 35,966 29,281
Retained ................ e e R 588 103

$52,362  $52,431

December 31,

2002 2001
Costsincurred to date . ...... .. ... .. i i $285,545  $235,261
Estimated earnings to date ... ....... ... ittt 41,403 37,385
326,948 272,646
Less: Billings to date ... ... it (249,056) (178,073)

$ 77,892 § 94,573

Included in accompanying balance sheets under the following captions:
Costs in excess of billings .. ....... ..o i i $ 78,494 $ 96,433
Billings in excess of COStS ... .vt it (602) (1,860)

$ 77,892 $ 94,573

We have not experienced material losses from uncollected receivables. Our principal customers are
national oil companies, and major and independent oil and gas companies and their affiliates. The
concentration of customers in the energy industry may impact our overall credit exposure, either positively or
negatively, since these customers may be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. Billed
and unbilled receivables from Pemex totaled $76.9 million at December 31, 2002. Accordingly, there is
significant concentration of risk with that single customer.

Cumulative revenues recognized from 2000 through 2002 on all Pemex projects in Mexico total
$286.8 million, including $57.0 million of claims made under three Pemex contracts for extra work related to
interferences, interruptions and other delays. Of the $57.0 million of claims, $54.2 million relates to our second
major project for Pemex, which was completed during the fourth quarter of 2002. The remaining $2.8 million
of claims relates to two more recent projects for Pemex. Unapproved claims related to the Pemex projects
developed primarily from client delays and changes in the initial scope of work. *
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A summary of the balance of claims remaining in costs in excess of billings related to the Pemex projects
are as follows (in millions):

Claims included in 2001 TeVENUE .. ... ... it e $42.8

Claims included in 2002 TEVENUE . ...ttt e e e et 142
Total claims . ... 57.0

Claims billed t0 Pemex ... ... i e e _(4.0)
Claims included in costs in excess of billings as of December 31,2002 .............. $53.0

During November 2002, we engaged a consulting firm in Mexico to assist us in the administration of the
claims to be made against Pemex. After considering the time necessary for the consultants to comply with
Pemex’s requirements and communication with new Pemex management, we believe that it will take longer to
process and collect these claims than previously expected. We now expect to formally submit these claims in
accordance with Pemex’s requirements through the second quarter of 2003, with collections expected by the
end of the third quarter of 2003. The unapproved claims we have included as revenue through December 31,
2002 are expected to be substantially less than the actual claims to be presented to Pemex, and we believe we
will collect more than the claim amounts recorded. However, there is a risk that the unapproved claims we
have recognized as revenue may not be collected in full. Should these unapproved claims become uncollectible
based upon subsequent events, we will recognize a loss in our financial statements at that time. There may be
factors other than the submission, review and approval of our claims which are outside our control that may
impact the ultimate collectibility of these amounts. We have considered factors including changes that have
occurred related to Pemex employees involved in the project, the operating structure of Pemex, and the
political and economic conditions in Mexico in assessing the collectibility of these amounts.

4. Detail of Certain Balance Sheet Accounts

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001

Barges, vessels and related equipment.......... ... L $268,770  $226,704
Land and buildings ......... ... e 19,726 16,509
Machinery and equipment . ... .. ... 245 245
Office furniture and equipment ........... ... oot 5,554 3,908
Leasehold improvements . . ... oo i e 3,440 2,498

297,735 249,864
Less — Accumulated depreciation ... ... ... ... . i i (39,888)  (28,418)
Property and equipment, net............... ... $257,847  $221,446
Depreciation expense is included in the following expense accounts:
Cost of CONtract TEVEMUES . ... ..ottt ettt et $ 10851 § 9,127
Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... .. ........ 619 1,128

$ 11,470  $ 10,255

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,

2002 2001
Foreign value added tax payable .......... . .. ... i $ 3,771 § 5767
Accrued capital expenditures . ..........c. i 3,762 4,791
............................................................ 3,108 2,294

$10,641  $12,852
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5. Notes Payable

Notes payable consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2001

Term loan payable to The CIT Group due in 84 monthly principal
installments of $411, plus interest, maturing June 30, 2006, collateralized
by mortgages on certain vessels. Interest at Libor plus 2.65% (4.03% and
4.73% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) ................. $34,469 $39,402

Revolving credit facility to Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A. due April 2,
2004, collateralized by accounts receivable. Interest at Southwest Bank’s
prime rate minus %% (4.00% and 4.50% at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively) ... 19,200 15,000

Term loan payable to GMAC due in monthly installments of $98,
maturing January 29, 2009, collateralized by a mortgage on the Sea
Horizon. Interest at Libor plus 2.5% (3.89% and 4.58% at December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively) ...... ... .. . .. .. 13,899 11,407

Term loan payable to GE Capital due in monthly installments of $115
beginning February 1, 2002, maturing January 1, 2012, collateralized by
a mortgage on the Pecos Horizon. Interest at the commercial paper rate
plus 2.45% (4.17% and 4.85% at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
TESPECtIVELY) L\t e e 10,288 11,200

Revolving credit facility to The CIT Group due May 10, 2004,
collateralized by mortgages on certain vessels. Interest at Libor plus
2.9% (4.34% and 5.02% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) .. 9,224 26,700

Term loan payable to South Trust Bank due in monthly installments of
$72, maturing on August 31, 2006, collateralized by property located in
Port Arthur. Interest at South Trust Bank’s prime rate plus 2% (4.75%
and 5.25% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) ............. 7,004 7,490

Revolving credit facility to Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A. due April 3,
2004, collateralized by accounts receivable. Interest at Southwest Bank’s
prime rate {4.25% and 4.75% at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
TESPECHVELY) .« ot 2,500 6,000

Term loan payable to Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A. due in monthly
installments of $15, maturing November 1, 2006, collateralized by
property located in Port Arthur. Interest at Southwest Bank’s prime rate

(4.25% and 4.75% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) ...... 1,643 1,822
Term loan payable to ABN Amro Bank due in monthly installments of $1,

maturing September 19, 2006. Interest at 4.93% ..................... 59 74
Term loan payable to ABN Amro Bank due in monthly installments of $1,

maturing December 20, 2006. Interest at 4.93% ..................... 38 —
Total long-term debt .. ... ... .. e 98,324 119,095
Less — Current maturities ... .........viniiie i (8,262) (7,681)
Long-term debt, net of current maturities ............................ $90,062 $111,414
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Loan Facilities

At December 31, 2002, we had approximately $98.3 million in total outstanding debt. This represents an
approximate decrease of $20.8 million from December 31, 2001. This decrease in debt is due to the use of
$20.0 million in equity offering proceeds to pay down our loans. Of the $98.3 million of outstanding debt,
$30.9 million represents borrowings on our three revolving credit facilities and $67.4 million represents
borrowing on the seven term-debt facilities. At December 31, 2002, we had $31.4 million available under our
three revolving facilities. Interest rates vary from Libor plus 2.5% to prime plus 0.5%. Our average interest rate
at December 31, 2002 was 4.21%, and our term-debt borrowings currently require $680,000 in total monthly
principal payments.

Our loans require that certain conditions be met in order for ué to obtain advances. Our loans are
collateralized by mortgages on our vessels and by accounts receivable. Advances under our revolving credit
facilities may be obtained in accordance with a borrowing base defined as a percentage of accounts receivable
balances and costs in excess of billings. The loans contain customary default provisions and some require us to
maintain certain financial ratios. The loan agreements also contain certain covenants that limit our ability to
incur additional debt, pay dividends, create certain liens, sell assets and make capital expenditures.

In September and December 2002, we amended one of our revolving credit facilities to increase the
financial ratio related to our financial leverage of debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization) for periods ending on or before June 30, 2003. We have experienced a reduction in
our EBITDA primarily due to reduced demand, lower margins on projects and the $2.0 million casualty loss
related to the Lone Star Horizon in the third quarter of 2002. We were in compliance with all of our amended
debt covenants at December 31, 2002.

We incurred debt to fund our working capital requirements in Mexico due to the timing of collections
related to our Pemex claims. Also, we may be required to borrow funds to meet working capital requirements
for 2003 contingent upon the timing of the collection of our Pemex receivables and claims. If we are required
to make additional borrowings in excess of our current debt facilities, we will be required to amend financial
covenants under our revolving credit facilities. Although there can be no assurance, we believe that we will be
able to borrow additional funds collateralized by mortgages on our vessels, refinance debt and amend financial
covenants as required.

Maturities of long-term debt for each of the years ending December 31 are as follows (in thousands):
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6. Income Taxes

Qur provision for income taxes in the statement of operations excludes $306,000 of deferred tax benefit
that is presented in the extraordinary loss for 2001 and $743,000 of deferred tax provision that is presented in
the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for 2000. Total tax expense (benefit) for the years

ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 consists of (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Federal

CUTTENE . oottt e et e e e et e e e e $ 639 $§ — § —
Deferred .. ... e (3,718) 4,511 3,645
$(3,079) $4,511  $3,645

The source of income before income tax expense (benefit) is as follows:
United States. .. ..ot e $(7,848) $15,770 $7,895
Foreign . ... (780) 308 —
$(8,628) $16,078 $7,895

The income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 differs from the
amount computed by applying the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate of 34 percent to consolidated income

before income taxes as follows (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001

2000

Expense (benefit) computed at federal statutory rate  $(2,934) (34.0)% $5,161 34.0% $3,407 34.0%

Increase (decrease) in provision from:

State income tax net of federal benefit............. 65 0.7 — —
Foreigntaxes ......... ..ot 275 3.2 — —
Nondeductible expenses ................ ... ...... 161 1.9 193 1.2
Foreign income exclusion . ....................... (646)  (7.5) (843) (5.3)

$(3,079) (357)% $4,511 29.7% $3,645

238 2.

5

w
(=)}
o

I

%

The decrease in our effective tax rate and difference from the statutory rate for 2001 is due primarily to
the cumulative effect of the initial application of the extraterritorial income exclusion for income primarily
earned in Mexico from October 1, 2000 to December 31, 2001. The exclusion for 2002 consists of income
earned in Mexico and parts of Southeast Asia from January 1, 2002 to December 31, 2002. The exclusion
allows us to exclude a qualifying portion of income earned outside the United States for tax purposes. The
impact of this exclusion on future periods will vary depending upon the amount of qualifying income earned

outside the United States.
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The tax effects of the temporary differences that give rise to the significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and liabilities are presented below (in thousands):

December 31,

2002 2001

Assets —

Net operating loss carryforwards ................. ... ... ... ... $29416 § 21,561

Gainon asset sales. . ............ . i 967 967

Accrued expense not currently deductible. . ........... ... ... ... ... 500 —

Contributions Carryover . ... ... 44 16

Fixed asset basis difference . .......... .. ... 3,245 —

Alternative minimum tax carryforwards ........... ... ... ... ... ... 917 917

Total gross deferred tax assets ............coo i, 35,089 23,461
Liabilities —

Book/tax depreciation difference ............ ... ... i, 44,161 36,251

Net deferred tax liabilities ........ ... .. ... .. .. ... ... ... ..., $(9,072) $(12,790)

The realization of a significant portion of deferred tax assets is based in part on our estimates of the
timing of reversals of certain temporary differences and on the generation of taxable income before such
reversals. The net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $86.5 million at December 31, 2002 begin to
expire in the year 2012. Our ability to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards could be limited by a change
in ownership as defined by federal income tax regulations.

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

We are involved in various routine legal proceedings primarily involving claims for personal injury under
the Jones Act and general maritime laws which we believe are incidental to the conduct of our business. We
believe that these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, if adversely determined, would not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

Leases

We lease office space at various locations under operating leases that expire through 2008. Our operating
leases for our corporate office are subject to increases for variable operating expenses. Rental expense was
$2.4 million for 2002, $1.5 million for 2001 and $1.0 million for 2000. Future minimum non-cancelable lease
commitments under these agreements for the years ending December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

20003 L e $ 2,684
2004 . 2,510
2005 L 2,504
2006 . e 2,341
2007 2,347
Thereafter ... e 2,489

$14,875

Insurance

We participate in a retrospectively rated insurance agreement. In our opinion, we have adequately
accrued for all liabilities arising from these agreements based upon the total incremental amount that would
be paid based upon the with-and-without calculation assuming experience to date and assuming termination.
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Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with three executive officers that expire in 2004, and we
have purchased $5.0 million in “key-man” life insurance with respect to our Chief Executive Officer, for

which Horizon is the named beneficiary.

Cal Dive Joint Venture

In March 2001, we formed a joint venture, 50% owned by us, with Cal Dive to perform small diameter,
deepwater reel pipelaying projects in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico with the Intrepid, a vessel owned by Cal Dive.
Operations of the joint venture would be jointly managed and staffed. If both Cal Dive and Horizon decide to
commence joint venture operations, we would be required to contribute approximately $8 million for the
design, construction and installation of reel pipelaying equipment on the Intrepid that was completed in 2002.
Based on current market conditions, we do not know when, or if, the joint venture will become operational.

8. Employee Benefit Plan

We have a 401(k) plan for all eligible employees and we make annual contributions to the plan, at the
discretion of management. We contributed $406,000, $331,000 and $247,000 of common stock to the plan
during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We intend to continue to make future contributions with Horizon
common stock.

9. Stockholders’ Equity
Public Offerings of Common Stock

In April 2002, we sold 3,000,000 shares of common stock in a public offering. We received $30.8 million
after deducting the underwriting discount and expenses. We used $20.0 million to reduce indebtedness under
our revolving credit facilities and the remainder was used for general corporate purposes.

In February 2001, we sold 3,800,000 shares of common stock in a secondary offering. We received
$66.0 million after deducting the underwriting discount and expenses. We used $30.0 million to reduce
indebtedness, and $5.6 million for the initial purchase of the Pecos Horizon. The remainder was used for
general corporate purposes.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

On January 11, 2001, our board of directors adopted a stockholders’ rights plan. In connection with the
plan, the board of directors approved the authorization of 100,000 shares of $1.00 par value per share,
designated the Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock. Under the plan, preferred stock purchase
rights were distributed as a dividend at a rate of one right for each share of our common stock held as of record
as of the close of business on January 11, 2001. Additional rights will be issued in respect of all shares of
common stock issued while the rights plan is in effect. Each right entitles stockholders of common stock to
buy a fraction of a share of the new series of preferred stock at an exercise price of $50. The rights will become
exercisable and detach from the common stock, only if a person or group acquires 20% or more of the
outstanding common stock, or announces a tender or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in a
person or group beneficially owning 20% or more of the outstanding common stock. Once exercisable, each
right will entitle the holder (other than the acquiring person) to acquire common stock with a value of twice
the exercise price of the rights. Horizon will generally be able to redeem the rights at $.001 per right at any
time until the close of business on the tenth day after the rights become exercisable. The rights will expire on
January 11, 2011, unless redeemed or exchanged at an earlier date.

Stock Options

In January 1998, the board of directors and the stockholders approved the Stock Incentive Plan (the
Plan). The Plan provides for the granting of stock options to directors, executive officers, other employees and
certain non-employee consultants. The amended Plan has 3.15 million shares available for issuance as
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optioned shares and terminates in April 2009. The terms of the option awards (including vesting schedules)
are established by the Compensation Committee of the board of directors, but generally vest ratably over three
years and unexercised options expire ten years from the date of issue. In May 2002, the board of directors and
the stockholders approved the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2002 Plan). The 2002 Plan has 2.3 million
shares available for issuance as optioned shares and shall remain in effect until all awards granted under the
2002 Plan have been satisfied. This plan has the same characteristics as the Plan approved in 1998. At
December 31, 2002, we had options for 2.3 million shares of common stock remaining to be issued in
aggregate under both plans.

The following table summarizes activity under both plans for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000:

Weighted
Shares Average Price

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 . ... ... ... 1,909,000 $ 8.67
Granted ... .. 218,500 $ 8.85
Forfeited and canceled . ...... ... .. ... it (79,503) $ 9.30
BXercised . ... (42,618) $ 8.48
Outstanding at December 31, 2000. ....... .. ... .. i 2,005,379 $ 8.67
Granted .. ... 910,000 $17.07
Forfeited and canceled . ......... ... ... ... ... i . (715,043) $17.42
EXErCised . ..o e (324,166) $ 9.10
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 . ... ... ... 1,876,170 $ 9.34
Granted . ... ... 916,000 $ 6.90
Forfeited and canceled ........ ... .. i (27,966) $ 7.52
Exercised ... ... (45,984) $ 6.17
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002. ... ... .. ... .. . ... 2,718,220 $ 8.59

The following table summarizes information on stock options outstanding and exercisable as of
December 31, 2002, pursuant to both plans:

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average Gptiens Exercisable
Range of Shares Remaining Weighted Average Shares Weighted Average
Exercise Prices QOutstanding  Centractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$17.12t0 2328 ....... 129,300 8.23 $19.98 59,756 $20.29
$10.97 to 17.12 .... ... 579,845 5.74 $13.16 525,174 $13.11
$ 481 101097 ... ... 2,009,075 7.81 $ 6.54 1,339,203 $ 6.44
$ 4.81 102328 ....... 2,718,220 7.39 $ 859 1,924,133 $ 8.69

Treasury Stock

As of December 31, 2002, treasury stock consisted of 912,207 shares at a cost of $6.0 million, following
the issuance of 61,298 and 29,895, shares for the Company’s 401(k) contributions in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Treasury stock is stated at the average cost basis.
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Earnings Per Share

The following table presents information necessary to calculate earnings per share for the three years
ended December 31, 2002 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Netincome (10S8) ...ttt $(5,949) $10,693 $6,374
Average common shares outstanding ......................... 25,573 22,431 18,824
Basic earnings pershare......... ... ... i, $ (022) $§ 048 § 0.34
Average common and dilutive potential common shares
outstanding:
Average common shares outstanding ......................... 25,573 22,431 18,824
Assumed exercise of stock options ............. ... ... ... ... — 655 631
25,573 23,086 19,455
Diluted earnings per share ............. ... ... ... ... $ (022) $§ 046 $0.33

As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding options covering an aggregate of 2,718,220 shares of
common stock, of which 1,924,133 shares were exercisable. Excluded from the computation of diluted
earnings per share are options to purchase 2,718,220 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31,
2002 at a weighted average price of $8.59 per share, 166,800 shares of common stock as of December 31, 2001
at a weighted average price of $19.06 per share and no shares in 2000, as they would be antidilutive.

10. Related Party Transactions

In August 1998, we entered into a master services agreement with Odyssea Marine, Inc. (Odyssea), an
entity wholly-owned by Elliott Associates, L.P. and Elliott International, L.P., collectively our largest
stockholder, to charter certain marine vessels from Odyssea. As of December 31, 2002, we owed Odyssea
$4.2 million for charter services compared to $0.6 million at December 31, 2001. Odyssea billed Horizon and
Horizon paid Odyssea for services rendered under the agreement as follows (in millions):

2002 2001 2000

Amount billed to Horizon ...t $18.3 $16.1  $11.3
Amount paid 10 Odyssea . ..o vvv it e $147 §$15.8 $11.0

We have loaned $332,000 to three of our executive officers. In October 2000, we loaned $142,000 to
R. Clay Etheridge, Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer. The principal amount remains
outstanding. In April and May 2002, we loaned $110,000 to Bill J, Lam, President and Chief Executive
Officer and $80,000 to David W. Sharp, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, respectively.
Both of these loan amounts have been paid in full.

11, Casualty Loss

On September 20, 2002, the pipelay barge, Lone Star Horizon, sustained electrical damage due to a fire
while at anchor off Ciudad Del Carmen, Mexico. Repairs to the Lone Star Horizon were completed during the
fourth quarter of 2002 at a cost of $5.0 million. We maintain hull and machinery insurance to cover physical
damage to our vessels. This insurance coverage provides for both a $0.5 million occurrence deductible and a
$1.5 million annual aggregate deductible. During 2002, we recorded this $2.0 million loss as other expense,
and we believe the insurance will cover the cost of the repairs. As of December 31, 2002, we included the
$3.0 million insurance claim in current assets. We collected an initial reimbursement of $1.2 million in
February 2003.
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12. Geographic Information

Horizon operates in the marine construction services industry. Geographic information relating to

Horizon’s operations follows (in millions):

(2)

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
DOMESHIC . oo oot $156.6 $128.1 $101.0
Latin America. ... ... 106.3 142.2 57.9
West AfTica . ..o 1.4 — —
Southeast ASIa. .. ... e 17.3 — —
Other ... e 1.8 1.9 1.6
Total .. $283.4 $272.2  $160.5
Gross Profit:
DoOmeEStIC ..t e $ 124 $21.1 $19.2
Latin AMeTICa . ..o .ot 18.4 18.2 9.3
West Africa .. ... o (2.8) — —
Southeast ASIad. . ...t e 1.6 — —
Other ... e 0.8 0.8 0.7
Unallocated costs(1) ...... ... i — (5.1) (4.8)
Total . oo $ 304 §$350 § 244

Year Ended December 31,

Long-lived assets (2):
DO IC . . oo

revenues.

Long-lived assets include vessels, property and related marine equipment. Amounts reflect the location of
the assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001. Equipment location changes as necessary to meet working
requirements. Other identifiable assets include inventory and other long-term assets, and are primarily
located in the Domestic geographic segment. Goodwill is located in the Latin America geographic

segment.
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As of December 31,

2002

$168.4
215
19.6
34.3
14.0

$257.8

2001

$145.3
42.7
18.4
15.0

$221.4

(1) Unallocated costs include support costs and operational overhead costs included in cost of contract



13. Quarterly Results of Operations {(Unaudited)

The marine construction industry in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico is seasonal, with contracts being awarded in
the spring and early summer and the work being performed before the onset of adverse weather conditions in
the winter. Seasonality and adverse weather conditions historically have resulted in lower revenues in the first
and fourth quarters. Full year results are not a direct multiple of any quarter or combination of quarters

because of this seasonality.

The following table sets forth selected quarterly information for 2002 and 2001 (in thousands, except per
share data). We believe that all necessary adjustments have been included in the amounts stated below to

present fairly the results of such periods.

(1)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2002
Contract TEVENMUES .. ..o vve et $66,103  $64,291 $64,977  $88,039
Grossprofit. ... ... .. 5,047 9,540 11,642 4,165
Operating income (loss) (1) ........covvivinien... 1,546 5,149 5,790  (13,788)
Netincome (loss) (1) ..., 377 2,614 1,831 (10,371)
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Net income (loss) per share — BASIC .......... $ 002 $ 010 $ 007 $ (0.39)
Net income (loss) per share — DILUTED ....... $ 002 $ 010 $ 007 $ (0.39)
Shares used in computing net income (loss):
Basic ... e 23,279 26,260 26,346 26,366
Diluted ... e 23,582 26,926 26,348 26,366
2001
CONtract TEVENUES . .\ vt ot et ettt et e i $54,056  $83,348  $60,965  $73,839
Gross profit. . ..o e 9,539 12,969 7,682 4,843
Operating iNCOME ... ......viuiiiiiennenaenn . 5,947 9,457 4,660 1,198
Net income before extraordinary loss .............. 2,656 5,435 2,752 418
Extraordinary loss, net of taxes of ($306) .......... (568) — — —
Netincome . ...t 2,088 5,435 2,752 418
EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC:
Net income before extraordinary loss ............ $ 013 $ 024 $ 012 § 0.02
Extraordinary loss ........... ... ..ot (0.03) — — —
Net income per share —BASIC .................. $§ 010 §$ 024 §$ 012 $ 0.02
EARNINGS PER SHARE — DILUTED:
Net income per share before extraordinary loss.... $ 012 $§ 023 §$ 012 § 002
Extraordinary loss ........... ... ... ... (0.02) — — —
Net income per share — DILUTED............... $ 010 § 023 §$§ 012 § 002
Shares used in computing net income:
Basic ... 20,443 22,930 23,036 23,265
Diluted .......... 21,506 23,909 23,351 23,390

Operating loss and net loss for the quarter ending December 31, 2002 includes a $9.9 million impairment

pre-tax loss related to the Phoenix Horizon.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized
on March 28, 2003.

HorizoN OFFSHORE, INC.

By: /s/ DAvVID W, SHARP

David W. Sharp
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ J. Louis Frank

J. Louis Frank

/s/ Bir J. Lam

Bill J. Lam

/s/ DaviD W. SHARP

David W. Sharp

/s/ MicHAEL R. LaTINA

Michael R. Latina

/s/ KEN R. LESUER

Ken R. LeSuer

/s/ Joun T. MiLLs

John T. Mills

/s/ EDWARD L. MOSES, JR.

Edward L. Moses, Jr.

/s/ PHIL D. WEDEMEYER

Phil D. Wedemeyer

Title

Chairman of the Board
President and Director (Principal

Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal

Financial and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003

March 28, 2003




CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bill J. Lam, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Horizon Offshore, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact

or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
Annual Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared,;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date” ); and

(c) presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/ BiLL J. Lam

Bill J. Lam
President and Chief Executive Officer
{ Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 28, 2003
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I, David W. Sharp, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Horizon Offshore, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
Annual Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Annual Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Annual Report is being prepared,;

{b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this Annual Report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

(c) presented in this Annual Report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified
for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

{b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this Annual Report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s/  DavID W. SHARP

David W. Sharp
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 28, 2003
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 — Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company(1)

3.2 — Bylaws of the Company(1)

4.1 -— Specimen Common Stock certificate(1)

4.2 — Rights Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2002, between Horizon Offshore, Inc. and Mellon
Investor Services LLC, as Rights Agent, including (i) as Exhibit A-the Form of Certificate of
Designations, (ii) as Exhibit B-the Forms of Rights Certificate, Assignment and Election to
Purchase, and (iii) as Exhibit C-the Summary Description of the Stockholder Rights Plan(7)

10.1 — Form of Indemnity Agreement by and between the Company and each of its directors(1)

10.2 — The Company’s Stock Incentive Plan(1)*

10.3 — Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Company’s Stock Incentive Plan(1)*

10.4 — Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 4, 1997 among the Company, Highwood
Partners, L.P., and Westgate International, L.P.(1)

10.5 — Loan Agreement dated December 30, 1998 among Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizon Offshore
Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., as agent, and the other lenders
specified therein(6)

10.6 — Amendment No. 1 to Loan Agreement dated as of January 30, 1999 among Horizon Vessels, Inc.,
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., as agent, and the
other lenders specified therein(35)

10.7 — Amendment No. 2 to Loan Agreement dated as of May 25, 1999 among Horizon Vessels, Inc.,
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., as agent, and the
other lenders specified therein(5)

10.8 — Amendment No. 3 to Loan Agreement dated as of November 30, 1999 among Horizon Vessels,
Inc., Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., as agent, and
the other lenders specified therein(5)

10.9 — Amendment No. 4 to Loan Agreement dated as of January 31, 2000 among Horizon Vessels, Inc.,
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc., as agent, and the
other lenders specified therein(5)

10.10 — Employment and Non-Competition Agreement dated as of September 1, 1999 between the
Company and Clay Etheridge(2)*

10.11 — Amendment No. 5 to the Loan Agreement dated as of June 30, 2000 among Horizon Vessels, Inc.,
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., The CIT Group/Equipment Financing Inc., as agent, and the
other lenders specified therein(3)

10.12 — Employment Agreement dated October 11, 1999 between Horizon Offshore Contractors, Ltd. and
James Devine (4)*

10.13 — Loan Agreement, dated March 26, 2001 between Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., Horizon
Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Offshore Vessels, Inc. and Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A.(8)

10.14 — Loan Agreement dated June 29, 2001, between Horizon Vessels, Inc. and General Electric Capital
Corporation (9)

10.15 — Employment and Non-Competition Agreement dated as of April 1, 2001 between the Company
and David W. Sharp(11)*

10.16 — Credit Agreement dated May 10, 2001, among Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizon Offshore Contrac-
tors, Inc., Horizon Offshore, Inc. and The CIT Group/Equipment Financing, Inc.(9)

10.17 — Employment Agreement and Non-Competition Agreement dated June 1, 2001 between the
Company and Bill Lam(11)*

10.18 — Loan Agreement dated June 29, 2001, among Horizon Vessels, Inc.,, Horizon Offshore, Inc.,
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc. and SouthTrust Bank(11)
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Exhibit
10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24
10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29
10.30

10.31
21.1
23.1
99.1
99.2

(1)

(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Number Description

— Loan Agreement dated August 31, 2001, between Horizon Vessels International Ltd. and GMAC
Business Credit, LLC(10)

— Loan Agreement dated August 15, 2001, among Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., Horizon
Subsea Services, Inc.,, Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizon, L.L.C. and Southwest Bank of Texas,
N.A.(10)

— First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 28, 2001 between Horizon Offshore
Contractors, Ltd. and James Devine(11)*

— First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of April 17, 2002 among Horizon Offshore
Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc. and Southwest Bank of
Texas, N.A,, as Agent(12)

— First Amendment to EXIM Guaranteed Loan Agreement dated as of April 17, 2002 among
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizen,
L.L.C. and Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A., as Agent(12)

— Horizon Offshore, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan(13)*

— Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of September 30, 2002, among Horizon Offshore
Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc. and Southwest Bank of
Texas, N.A.(14)

— Third Amendment to EXIM Guaranteed Loan Agreement dated as of September 30, 2002, among
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizen,
L.L.C., and Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A.(14)

— Fifth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of March 6, 2003, among Horizon Offshore
Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc. and Southwest Bank of
Texas, N.A.(15)

— Fourth Amendment to EXIM Guaranteed Loan Agreement dated as of March 6, 2003, among
Horizon Offshore Contractors, Inc., Horizon Subsea Services, Inc., Horizon Vessels, Inc., Horizen,
L.L.C, and Southwest Bank of Texas, N.A.(15)

— Employment and Non-Competition Agreement dated May 31, 2002 between the Company and J.
Louis Frank(15)*

— Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated January 1, 2003 between the Company and
James Devine(15)*

— Loan Agreement dated October 2, 2000 between Horizon Offshore, Inc. and R. Clay Etheridge(15)
— Subsidiaries of the Company(15)

— Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP(15)

— Bill J. Lam-Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(15)

— David W. Sharp-Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(15)

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
Statement No. 333-43965).

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998,
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(7
(8)
)
(10)
(1)
(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

*

Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form 8-A12B, filed with the Commission on January 18, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10K-405 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to our Definitive Schedule 14A filed on April 8, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2002.

Filed herewith.
Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement.
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